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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

SUMMARY OF CHANGES  

SECTION  SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

The following have been added by full text: 

        BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE
RESPONSES TO 140 QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THE RFP POSTED 30 DEC 03 AND THE INTIAL RFP QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS POSTED ON THE GUARDIAN WEB PAGE 24 JAN 04.  (Please note that questions 132 through 141 are based on the previously posted RFP questions and answers):  

Q1:  The Guardian Installation Protection Program is a diverse and complex program.  We are concerned that Section L and M of the RFP do not reflect the need for offerors’ to provide an IPP IMP and IMS as part of the proposal submission covering the installation per fiscal year as presented in the 21 August Industry briefing (200 installations over 72 months).  Accordingly, the Government’s ability to award based on total capacity and surge capability may be limited.

A1:  Installation scheduling requirements will be specifically covered in the Program Management TD to be awarded after contract award, and separate TDs for groups of installations.  With no proposed Government installation schedule in the RFP, the Government believes it would be premature to require offerors to create IMPs/IMSs at this time.  IMPs and IMSs are envisioned to be part of the Program Management TD and follow-on TDs to be released after contract award.

Q2:  Section L of the RFP currently requires offerors’ to provide proposals to be written in a 12 point text font with 1.5-line spacing and that all fonts on graphics be no smaller than a 12 point font.  We believe this restriction will severely limit the amount of information that can be presented in the LSI proposal.  We recommend that the text be single spaced and graphics font simply be required to be legible.

A2:  There will be no change in line spacing, text, and graphics.  

Q3:  In both the Government responses to the questions posted on 24 December 2003 and the final RFP cover letter posted on 30 December 2003 it states that the contract type will be Cost-Plus- Fixed-Fee (CPFF) Term.  At the December 10th Industry Day and on page 38 of the final RFP, it states that the contract will be awarded as a CPFF Level of Effort (LOE) contract.  Please clarify which contract type is correct.

A3:  These terms are synonymous and are, in fact, the same contract type.  A term contract is one that is “fixed” by length of the term/period of performance; number of direct production person hours (DPPHs); and/or estimated value (estimated cost plus fixed fee).  When any of these three distinct parameters are reached, the contract is over.

Q4:  The Government’s response to one of the questions posted on 24 December 2003 (page 44 of 49) stated, “It is not anticipated that the offeror will provide composite rates…”  Is it the Government’s intention to have the offeror provide a separate rate table for the Prime and each LSI subcontractor that maps to the Government labor categories?

A4:  Yes, see Exhibits IX through XII.

Q5:  As part of the complete IPP for an installation, the contract requires, per Para C.2.8.1 of the SOW, “the contractor will use the GFI to create the final installation-specific design” and that the government must approve the detailed equipment installation plan and schedule before initiation of COTS procurement, construction, or equipment installation. In addition, C.2.8.2 requires the contractor provide and be responsible for site preparation, installation of equipment; C2.8.3 requires the contractor to provide training and exercises, and as part of C.2.9 a series of logistics activities related to the 1st year’s sustainment of the FoS.  The sample TD requires the contractor to clearly demonstrate “their approach and implementation of a final solution based on the government’s partial solution”.  Are we correct to assume that as part of the pricing for the sample TD, that 1) we are to price all costs through site exercise and completion of the 1st year’s sustainment as outlined in the SOW, and 2) the intent is that the government’s approval of the design for the sample TD is waived for this proposal in order to do so?  

A5:  Yes, the offeror can assume that the Government has waived approval of the offeror’s proposed design.  The offeror’s cost build-up efforts (Vol V, Tab C) need to include all costs associated with his design approach to include site exercises and a 12-month sustainment effort as outlined in the SOW.

Q6:  The SF33 does not contain a DPAS rating.  What is the Guardian IPP DPAS rating?

A6:  No DPAS rating is currently assigned to the Guardian IPP program; however, Guardian is pursuing DPAS Rating DO-C3.

Q7:  Page 34, Key Personnel Clause.  Our assumption is that no names should be included in the section.  Is our assumption correct?

A7:  No.  Section L, para L.4.2 (c), (Tab A1) requires offerors to identify key personnel and provide a resume for the proposed LSI PM.  It is not, however, necessary to complete the Key Personnel Clause on page 34 as part of the proposal.  This clause will be completed at contract award. 

Q8:  Section K, page 55, 58,61,62: for 52.215-6 place of Performance, 52.255-2 Buy American Certificate, 252.227-7-17 Identified and Assertion of Use, Release, or Disclosure Restriction, 252.227-7028 Technical data or Computer Software Previously Delivered too the Gov. and 252.247-7022 Representation of Extent of Transportation by Sea is the offeror to certify to what is known at this time, to the sample TD or to certify with actual TDs? Please clarify?

A8:  The offeror shall certify to what is known at this time; however, the certification requirements will continue throughout the life of the contract and re-certification will be done as necessary based on the specific TDs.

Q9:  Section L pages 65-71: Our assumption is that subcontractor details rate information can be submitted directly to SMDC?  Is our assumption correct?  IF so how many copies of the supporting information are required?

A9:  Yes, the information should be submitted directly to Ms Michele Williams (SMDC) - one copy.  In addition, see Section L.1, “Submission of Proposal” for complete details.

Q10:  The Government attached a 15 page Overarching Test Concept Plan (OTCP) to the RFP with emphasis on the integrated role of the M&S, UA, IEAs, IIEAs, etc.  Yet there is not a place defined in either Section L or Section M where an approach to this integrated test and M&S program can be addressed or evaluated.  The M&S section can address some of the topics, but it would appear inappropriate to discuss the UAs, IEAs, and IIEAs in this section.   Was it the Government’s intention that an approach to the OTCP be addressed in the proposal?  If so, where will it be evaluated?

A10:  The Government provided offerors a copy of the Guardian IPP OTCP as supporting information to the SOW.  The requirements to support a Government led team to execute the OTCP will be issued with the site specific TD.

Q11:  Reference Page 79 Section L.4.2(c)-(TABA4):  The subcontract goals under the 23% subcontracting goal include a 7% subcontracting goals for “other small business.”  It is not clear what is included in this category since the other subcontracting goals have statuary definitions for what businesses are included (e.g., HUBZone businesses).  Additionally; it appears that an assumption has been made that the subcontracting goal is a cumulative result of the subcontracts goals.  It is our assumption that the subcontract goals are independent of the total subcontracting goal of 23%, meaning that it would be feasible for the LSI to exceed a subcontracting goals (e.g., the 5% goal for SDBs), but not necessarily exceed the overall 23% SB goal.  

A11:  Your assumption regarding the independence of the subcontracting goals is absolutely true, although qualifying firms can be counted under multiple categories ( e.g. a WOSB would count against both the WOSB & total SB goals).   The “other small businesses” title was simply our created term of art to describe small businesses which do not also fit within the other specified subcategories.  This term and its goal have been deleted - see changes to Section L.4.2(c), Tab A4, in the Amendment to the Solicitation.  Contractors are expected to meet all subcontracting goals.  Exceeding one goal does not mean that another goal can be reduced.  

Q12:  The Award Term Plan has an Integrated Master Plan (IMP) and Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) as elements the contractor will be evaluated against for subsequent Award Terms.  However, neither an IMP nor IMS is required to be submitted as part of the proposal.  Without an IMP/IMS being submitted and evaluated as part of the proposal process how does the government intend to assess the Contractor’s ability to plan and carry out the overall program?  

A12:  Installation planning and scheduling requirements will be specifically covered in Program Management TD to be awarded after contract award, and separate TDs for groups of installations.  With no proposed Government installation schedule in the RFP, the Government believes it would be premature to require offerors to create IMPs/IMSs at this time.  IMPs and IMSs are envisioned to be part of the Program Management TD and follow-on Installation TDs to be released after contract award.

Q13  The Government seems to have indicated at Industry Day that it wants the contractor to apply for “designation and certification” under the Safety Act.  Did the government intend the contractor to be registering the systems integration services it would be providing under the Guardian SOW as anti-terrorism services? Did the Government foresee the contractor registering the equipment systems (COTS and GFE) to be developed in performance of Guardian for Safety Act protection?  If so, since the systems using the equipment are not yet in existence, how does the Government suggest the systems/equipment be identified in order to complete the information required in a Safety Act application?

A13:  The Government does not have an opinion on whether a contractor should apply for certification under the Safety Act.  This is a process that the contractor has available, by law, should the contractor decide to apply.  The Government will support the process in accordance with Section H, “Safety Act Process”.  

Q14:  Does indemnification granted under the Safety Act to a Lead Services Integrator, as a provider of services, also apply to or flow down to subcontractors and vendors as providers of hardware?

A14:  The Safety Act does not provide indemnification, it limits the technology supplier’s liability; however, for specific applicability, the contractor should pursue this question with DHS.  

Q15:  Where should the information requested under Section L, “INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF A CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL WHEN OTHER THAN COST OR PRICING DATA ARE REQUIRED” on page 66 through 73 be included in our proposal?  Please specify the volume and TAB where you would like to see this material as well as the page limitation for this information.

A15:  Volume V TAB B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q16:  Section L.4.1 specifies that Volume I should “be prepared in accordance with L.2, Instructions for Completion of Solicitation Part I – The Schedule.” These L.2 instructions include completing the CLINS in Section B of the RFP – which would include cost and fee information.  However, later in Section L.4.1, there is a sentence that states, “this document [Volume I] shall not include any cost information.”  Please clarify where we should include the completed RFP Section B in our proposal.

A16:  Fill-in sections of the RFP shall be included in Volume I, General, IAW Section L.4.1.

Q17:  The footnote at the bottom of page 69 (Section L, INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF A CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL WHEN OTHER THAN COST OR PRICING DATA ARE REQUIRED) states:  * 
Examples of Bases:  …For Fee the base might be Labor plus Overhead plus Other Direct Costs.  On page 36 and 37 in Section H, Other Direct Costs are defined as “travel” and “other costs” which includes “material, equipment, reproductions for deliverables, etc.” Section B, Item No 0001 through 0004, states that the fee base excludes travel and materials.  Please clarify if “travel” and “other costs” as defined above are fee bearing or not.

A17:  Both Section L,  INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF A CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL WHEN OTHER THAN COST OR PRICING DATA ARE REQUIRED and the Section H clause OTHER DIRECT COSTS are standard SMDC clauses and speak in general terms.  The example is certainly not meant to imply that the “base” will include specific items of cost, rather it is only, an example to explain what is meant by the data requirement discussed in that clause.  Neither travel nor materials will be fee bearing.

Q18:  In Figure 7 of Section III, Government’s Partial Solution within the Sample Technical Directive for a Family of Systems (FoS) Design document, no locations are shown for radiological detectors, even though they are discussed in the text.  Please specify the location of these detectors.

A18:  The locations and identity of the Radiological detection systems must be determined by the offeror.  Page 23 of the sample TD, detection systems para, will be modified to read:  “the location and identity of chemical and biological detection systems is indicated on the secure area and building site map provided in figure 7.”  The sentence that reads “These include ….detection systems” will be deleted.  

Q19:  The scale in Figure 3 of the Sample Technical Directive for a Family of Systems (FoS) Design document appears to be inconsistent with the other drawings and text.  As a result, we can’t correlate the drawings with one another.  Please clarify the scale for this drawing.

A19:  The scale for figure 1 is changed from 5 km to 15 km.  Delete the reference to miles on the scale.  Delete the distance from the military installation to the city (18miles/29KM’s)  

Q20:  In Section L.1, there are blanks to be completed for identifying our ACO and DCAA representatives. The associated text says the offeror "shall provide" this information. Please clarify where in our proposal you would like this information to be included.

A20:  Fill-in sections of the RFP shall be included in Volume I, General, IAW Section L.4.1.

Q21:  In the Sample TD, page 5, reference is made in the 3rd paragraph to a SECRET document.  Is the data extracted from that document unclassified?

A21:  Yes

Q22:  A significant amount of data is requested for items "c" through "f" under "Instructions for Submission of a Contract Proposal When Other Than Cost or Pricing Data are Required."  Please identify in what volume and tab of the proposal these data are to be included and whether or not these pages will be included in the page count.

A22:  Volume 5, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.

Q23:  Page counts are associated with the sub-tabs of Management TABs A and B.  Should we therefore assume that the statements at the TAB A and TAB B levels are introductory information for the offeror?  In other words, the proposal volume requirements are stated under the sub-TABs with no written proposal material to be provided at TAB A and B?  For example, "put forward mitigation strategies to keep the risk within acceptable limits to ensure successful contract performance" is stated under TAB B but not specified in either TAB B1 or TAB B2.

A23:  Yes, there are no pages associated with TAB A and TAB B.  All written materials should be provided in the subtabs.  Using your example, risk mitigation strategies should be addressed in both TAB B1 and B2.  

Q24:  In L.4.2(a), it states that "The management proposal shall include a description of proposed resources, facilities, equipment, and services, including Government furnished facilities, equipment, services, and information, to be used in accomplishing the requirements of the SOW." The same sentence is in L.4.3 relative to the Technical proposal.  The Management proposal also contains the following sentence: "The management proposal shall contain a description of the contractor's approach to complete all the requirements of the SOW." Please clarify whether the intent is to have (1) all SOW requirements addressed in each of the Management proposal and the Technical proposals or that (2) that all SOW requirements are to be addressed in the Management proposal with the compliance matrix for the Technical proposal showing which requirements are mapped to it.

A24:  The offeror needs to address the applicable management requirements in the management volume and the applicable technical requirements in the technical volume and it will incumbent on the offeror to cover all requirements.

Q25:  Please clarify whether it is acceptable for a SOW and/or Section M requirement to map only to information presented on a Slide.

A25:  The Government wants the SOW and/or Section M requirements mapped to both the written proposals and to the slides.

Q26:  Is single line spacing acceptable within tables, charts, graphs, and diagrams?

A26:  No,  1.5 line spacing must be maintained throughout the proposal.

Q27:  Would the Government consider providing offerors with a status prior to 30 January of which Questionnaires listed on the submitted Attachment 3 spreadsheets have been received?

A27:  The Government will not have any such listing available prior to 30 Jan – in fact, submission of the offeror’s data/spreadsheet is not due until 30 Jan 04.

Q28:  Will certified cost or pricing data be required to contractually authorize and implement TDs?

A28:  Under the initial CPFF TDs, such will not be required; however, when/if TDs are issued on a FFP completion basis, the Government reserves the right to request certified cost or pricing data. 

Q29:  Should proprietary supplier/subcontractor rate data be submitted directly to the Army PCO or to the cognizant audit agency of the suppliers?

A29:  Proprietary data should be provided to both; See Section L-1, Submission of Proposals.

Q30:  Is the DVD limited to a video of the speaker and the slides or can the DVD include video content in addition to the speaker and the slides, as long as it is not overly elaborate?  L.4.2, TAB D & L.4.3, TAB B2

A30:  The DVD is limited to the speaker and slides.

Q31:  For ease of presentation, can you enlarge a portion of a slide on the DVD only without it counting as an additional slide? L.4.2, TAB D & L.4.3, TAB B2

A31:  Yes it is acceptable to enlarge a portion of a slide, however all of the information presented must conform to the requirements of L3 (4), L.4.2, TAB D & L.4.3, TAB B2

Q32:  Does it require 4 or 12 people per shift to maintain the antenna array?  (Sample TD)

A32:  On page 11 of the sample TD, it defines a total of 12 people.  4 people per shift for three 8-hour shifts.

Q33:  On page 11, the requirement is for 2 military personnel in the EOC.  On page 15, it states 3 of which 2 must be military.  Please clarify. (Sample TD)

A33:  On page 11, the sample TD will be modified to read, “the EOC has two military and one civilian personnel on duty during operational hours.”  On page 15, the sample TD will be modified to read, “ the EOC has 3 personnel, 2 military and 1 civilian.”  

Q34:  Is HAZMAT gear for the firefighters the same as IPE? (Sample TD)

A34:  HAZMAT gear includes IPE.

Q35:  Do offsite responders get IPE from Guardian?  If so, how many? (Sample TD)

A35:  For the purposes of the proposal, the sample TD assumes that all offsite responders are already provided with the appropriate IPE

Q36:  On page 2, it states "Computationally based analysis using geo-physical modeling or simulation tools is not required in the formulation of the design solution."  On page 3, it states, " Use science based principles to support the FoS final design."  Please clarify, as these statements seem contradictory. (Sample TD)

A36:  The technical approach to define the offeror’s solution does not necessarily require computationally based analysis using geo-physical modeling or simulation tools.

Q37:  Under Detection Systems in the Government's Partial Solution, it states that:  "A combination of chemical, biological, and radiological detector systems will be deployed around and within the secure area and operated 24/7 to provide both detect-to-warn (chemical and radiological) and detect-to-treat (biological) detection capability.  The location and identity of each detection system is indicated on the secure area and building site map provided in Figure 7. Figure 7 does not show the location of the radiological detection systems.  Please provide the locations for the radiological systems. (Sample TD)

A37:  The locations and identity of the Radiological detection systems must be determined by the offeror.  Page 23 of the sample TD, detection systems para, will be modified to read:  “the location and identity of chemical and biological detection systems is indicated on the secure area and building site map provided in figure 7.”  The sentence that reads “These include ….detection systems” will be deleted.

Q38:  Does the LSI need to provide ILS support for CBRN equipment already installed at base? (Sample TD)

A38:  For the purposes of the sample TD, the LSI will provide ILS support for all CBRN equipment integrated into the F0S.

Q39:  Are there any CBRN detectors in the building? (Sample TD)

A39:  No

Q40:  What is the metric to define "limited recovery?" In the ISA

A40:  Limited recovery refers to the actions and activities (primarily decontamination) required to reestablish essential functions to support critical military operations.

Q41:  Could you advise on the intent for including Huntsville for labor rate costing.  Schedule B would be priced based on the individual bidder's real company locations (indirect and direct rates) and the sample TD would require a duplication of the pricing build up and related support for rates which will never actually be realized.  Does the statement intend to reflect that the base is in Huntsville for estimating travel purposes?  If Huntsville labor rates are indeed to be used, we will comply.

A41:  For travel estimating purposes, the base is located in Huntsville.  The offeror should, however, use the same rate philosophy in the TD pricing as utilized to develop the pricing in Schedule B.

Q42:  The contracting officer has indicated that proposals made contingent on incorporation of indemnification under PL 85-804 shall be considered non-responsive.  This Contractor is processing the request and anticipates submission to your office by 12 January 04, yet continues to be concerned with the processing time and required approval by the Secretary of the Army.   It is important that all of the competitors have the contracting officer's firm commitment to conduct an expeditious review, supporting those requests with appropriate justification, and forwarding requests on to the Secretary as soon as possible but no later than the estimated time of the approval cycle within the Secretary's office to adhere to the proposal due date.  Will the contracting officer offer some other interim risk mitigation to the winning contractor if the indemnification is held up due to administrative delays where an intent to approve the indemnification has been established?   Once the formal indemnification request under PL 85-804 is received by the PCO, what is the estimated timeframe for review and forwarding of the package (assuming sufficient justification documentation is provided) to the Secretary of the Army for processing?  How long will the approval cycle be once received by the Secretary of the Army?    In addition, the FAR states requests go to the contracting officer (50.403-1(a), 50.403-2), please advise if an alternative submission directly to the Secretary of the Army is planned based on comments included in the 15 December 03 SMDC indemnification letter.

A42:  The Contracting Officer will not offer “some other interim risk mitigation to the winning contractor if the indemnification is held up…”.  Further, there is no guarantee that DA will even consider the contractor’s request for indemnification for the Guardian IP Program.  No direct submissions to the Secretary of the Army are allowed. We have no guidelines concerning the specific timelines once the package reaches DA, however, we have been advised that the process takes a minimum of six months. 

Q43:  The Government verbally indicated at the business industry day (Dec 10, 03) that the number of bases and estimated hours are for pricing evaluation purposes only for award of a technical directive contract.   Will the PCO send a written notification that the Government acknowledges the Sample TD and Schedule B pricing are for pricing evaluation purposes only and not a firm offer/commitment on the part of the selected contractor?

A43:  No…while the Sample TD is for proposal evaluation only and will never be executed, the Schedule B pricing is for evaluation and will be the basis of the Cost-Plus-Fixed-Fee value established for the resultant contract.  The contract will be a CPFF contract for 2,838,427 DPPHs to be provided as directed by individual TD.

Q44:  ISA-Annex B-contains recommended baseline equipment solution set.  Paragraph in Annex B states that Enclosure 1 (Potential Equipment Solutions) “… were evaluated by the Government and found not to be suitable at this time.”  Please clarify the conflict between Annex B and Enclosure 1 as many of the items of equipment contained in Annex B are also found in Enclosure 1, e.g., Dry Filter Unit.  

A44:  The Government will eliminate the confusion by deleting the following from the introductory para. from Annex B:  “also, these potential CBRN programs and equipment were evaluated and were found not to be suitable at this time.”

Q45:  ISA Annex D-Is the time frame required for confirmatory ID of BW 48 hours from presumptive ID as stated the Baseline/Objective or 48 hours from collection as stated in the rationale.  

A45:  The timeframe for confirmatory BW ID is 48 hours from filter insertion (into the DFU) to confirmation.

Q46:  ISA, STD Will the Government make labs available for DFU testing?

A46:  Yes the Government will be providing regional labs.

Q47:  Sect. L/Q&A In the Questions and Answers, dated 12/24/03, on page 12, it was stated that “Backup cost materials should be placed in Volume 5 Tab B.  However, in the final RFP the only appropriate place seems to be Tab B3.  This information to be inserted in Tab B3 includes all the detailed cost backup requested in Section L, pages 66 through 73 under the heading “Instructions for submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal when other than cost or pricing data are required,” but this Tab has a 5 page limitation.  Does the Government intend Contractors to insert an Annex to any tab for inclusion of the backup cost materials?  If not, where should they be placed?  Where BOEs (Basis of Estimates) should be placed?  On page 84, L.4.5 (c), requires “adequate” information for evaluation which is defined as “…that level of information at which tasks and resources to accomplish the task can be logically identified and evaluated…”

A47:   The Government only wants BOEs for the TD solution; the BOE for the sample TD should be placed in Vol V, TAB C.  The other data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q48:  Section H, paragraph 4.b. (page 24 of 91) in the final RFP states “The contractor will provide a cost estimate within 24 hours….”.  On page 36 of the Questions and Answers provided on 12/24/03, the Government indicated the RFP would be revised to specify “two business days.”  Has the Government elected to stay within the 24 hours turn around as stated in the RFP?

A48:  Section H, paragraph 4.b, will be modified to indicate two business days.  

Q49:  Sec H, TD Procedure Question relates to clarifying what work scope is anticipated for “System Modernization” and where this effort is described in the SOW.  Sec H, paragraph for TD Procedures says each TD will be broken out into Site Assessment & Design, Equip Install & Field, Install Exercise, ILS, and System Modernization.  Is system modernization included in SOW C.2.12, Contractor Market Research, as the possible retrofitting of completed installation?  If this is not the case, please define work effort to be conducted for system modernization.  

A49:  The work effort for system modifications will be defined by separate TD.  Retrofitting would be approved by the Government and identified by separate TD.

Q50:  Sec H, TD Procedure, d., Page 31 of 97 Question relates to clarifying where the Continuous Optimization work scope is described in the SOW.  Paragraph d. for Section H, TD Procedure, states the Government intends to award a separate TD for Continuous Optimization.  Is this effort included in SOW paragraph C.2.6 (Eng Supt) and C.2.12 (Market Research)?  

A50:  Yes this effort is included in the SOW par C.2.6 and C.2 .12.

Q51:  CDRL #002 In the Exhibit V "Contract Data Requirements List", CDRL Item #002, Disaster Preparedness Exercise Evaluation Report, appears to be due at proposal submittal.  As this report is typically prepared after a site-specific installation and exercise, can you please clarify if this document is required at time of proposal submittal?

A51:  This document is not required until after the completion of the exercise.

Q52:  L, TAB A4 Given that the FAR 52.219-9 (d) referenced in this section requires small business percentage to be of total dollars planned to be subcontracted for placement to small business and Section L, TAB A4 states the small business percentage is of total contract value, can the contractor assume the FAR clause referenced takes precedence over the conflict in text?

A52:  No, the FAR 52.219-9 is a mandatory clause, however, this RFP (and resultant contract) has higher-than-statutorily-required subcontracting goals for small business community.

Q53:  Section I, pg 72, para l., Section XI Please confirm that the detailed subcontractor information required for the $10M/10% of the contract price threshold or certification threshold amount ($550K) is only required to be provided for the Schedule B pricing evaluation and does not require a separate submittal for the Sample TD should the pricing include subcontractor content exceeding 10% of the prime contractor's total contract price or exceeds the $550,000 certification threshold.

A53:  Such is required for Schedule B pricing only; the sample TD pricing shall, however, track to the methodology utilized for Schedule B.

Q54:  Section L.4.5 and M.1, paragraph entitled Teams-Question relates to the difference between the term partners and subcontractors.  Section M distinguishes and requires teaming agreements.  However, Section L.4.5 only states subcontractors. Please clarify the difference so bidders can ensure appropriate level of compliance to L.4.5 and Section L, TAB B1.

A54:  For the purpose of this solicitation, partners and subcontractors are synonymous.

Q55:  L.3 (11) With respect to the requirement that the font used in “tables, charts, graphs, and figures …. shall be no smaller than 12-point Times New Roman,” we want to verify that we will be compliant if we follow established government/industry practice and use a 11-point sans serif font (such as Arial or Helvetica) in our figures, since 11-point sans serif fonts are sized the same as 12-point Times New Roman.  (Although it may seem counter-intuitive, using the larger 12-point font inside figures actually makes them less readable and visually more difficult to interpret.).  Sample Times New Roman – Guardian Proposal.  Sample Sans Serif Font -Guardian Proposal

A55:  11-point Sans serif font is not allowable.  See para L.3 (4).

Q56:  Does the JPMG definition of a Decision Support System (DSS) include both Command & Control (C2) and Consequence Management functions, or just Consequence Management?  In other words, does the JPMG envision the DSS to interface directly with sensors, or interface to a C2 component which provides the interface to the sensors?

A56:  Yes, DSS include both C2 and Consequence Management. See SOW C.2.7 C4I Integration and C.2.7.2 CBRN DSS.

Q57:  Will the Government provide prices, part numbers, and vendors for equipment listing?

A57:  Post award, the Government will provide technical data for all GFE.

Q58:  L.4 (11)Section L.4 (11) states "Each printed side of a fold out shall count as one page."  Please clarify if "side" means the front and back of a single page, or the left and right of a folded page.

A58:  A fold out with printing on front and back would be two pages.  A fold out with printing on just the front would be one page.

Q59:  SOW Paragraphs C.2.5 (page 8) and C.2.9.1 (page 10); IPP Overarching Test Concept Plan Paragraphs 2.3.f (page 6 of OTCP) and 9, LSI Bullet (page 15 of OTCP):   The Overarching Test Concept Plan, paragraph 2.3.f (page 6) and paragraph 9, LSI bullet, (page 15) state that "For one-year after fielding, the LSI will operate and maintain all of the FoS except the first responder equipment, which the LSI will only maintain."   The SOW states that the LSI will conduct training and be responsible for sustainment for one year.  In each case the subject of sustainment is mentioned, the implication is that this sustainment is limited to maintenance, repair, sparing, etc.  SOW paragraph C.2.5 (page 8) states "The Contractor shall maintain all integrated Contractor-Acquired Property and Government-Furnished Property/Equipment in an operational state for the one-year sustainment period following acceptance at each individual installation."  The SOW does not include the requirement to "operate" during the sustainment period.  In fact, to operate during this one-year period would greatly increase the cost of support.  Please clarify if you want the LSI to operate the equipment during the one-year sustainment period.

A59:  Yes, The LSI will operate and maintain the FoS equipment.  

Q60:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  Was it the Government’s intent not to specify the type of chemical detector for the partial solution.

A60:  Yes.

Q61:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  Does the Government’s partial solution include any details about detector placement and mounting not included in the document provided?

A61:  No.

Q62:  Sample Technical Directive for a Family of Systems (FoS) Design:  Would the Government please provide the rationale for why was VLSTRACK selected to do biological and chemical releases rather than HPAC?

A62:  VLSTRACK is accredited by DoD to model CB attacks such as those chosen for the IPP.  HPAC has not been accredited by DoD for hazard prediction of CB attacks on US military forces.  HPAC is the DoD accepted standard for radiological hazard prediction.

Q63:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  What versions of HPAC and VLSTRACK are being used?

A63:  The latest versions issued by NSWC (VLSTRACK 3.0.2) and DTRA (HPAC 4.0.3) were used.  These models can only be issued to DoD, Federal Agencies or contractors with an existing DoD contract, which requires their use.  The intent of this Sample Technical Directive is to give the responder the opportunity to demonstrate their understanding of the technical issues and available tools and is not intended to require use of tools that can not be made available to you at this time..  

Q64:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  Were the site and modeling control parameters (weather, etc.) that were used in VLSTRACK simulation of for the biological and chemical releases the same values utilized in HPAC for the RDD plume?  What parameters were used to describe the release (e.g., Mass of Load, Altitude, Initial Size, Mass-Mean Diameter, Sigma D, Dissemination Efficiency, Agent Purity, Dry Fraction, Release Mass)?  Will the Government make a listing of the input files available?

A64:  The threat profiles provided are representative and demonstrative only.  Though they may be used as presented to estimate the base threat scenario for a specific site, higher fidelity approaches would use these as starting points.  Specific release parameters for weapon’s releases would be classified.  All relevant data and information will be made available to the LSI to support specific installation related technical directives.

Q65:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  Figure 6 SK-3 Building and Floor Plan (page 22) is missing North orientation arrow on map.  Please confirm that the orientation is the same as in Figure 5.

A65:  Yes.

Q66:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  On page 4 it is stated “JPMG assumed an appropriate level of physical security that would prevent entry of quantities that would result in catastrophic events.”  Does this assumed level of physical protection also preclude penetration of the site via airspace?  Does this assumed level of physical protection also preclude penetration of the site via the river that runs through the site?

A66:  Yes to both questions.

Q67:  Sample Technical Directive for a FoS Design:  The following questions refer to the HPAC input:  Which option was utilized in HPAC?  Pre-Defined Small Device User Specified Device?  If User Specified Device was selected, what were the values for HE Mass?    Which form was selected for Cesium-137?  Which was selected and what was the value entered?  Material Mass?  Material Activity?  What was the value entered for Calculation Radius?   What was the value entered for Exposure Duration?  What Cloud Dose option was selected?

A67:  The User Specified Device setting was used. However, the specific values of HE mass and type of Cesium-137 (CeCl was used and the maximum credible radiological values were used) are not necessary to demonstrate knowledge and understanding of the issues and tasks associated with this Sample Technical Directive. The threat profiles provided are representative only and not intended to be the sole criteria upon which to base design decisions.  For the Sample TD, responders are free to examine these issues to demonstrate their depth of understanding of CBR threats and defense systems, as well as the analysis issues and tools.  Exposure duration is not solely a function of the threat profile and therefore must be derived.  Cloud Dose is given in the chart legend and calculation radius is derivable from the graphic though not needed, depending upon the design approach.  

Q68:  Will any data developed, transmitted, or stored on any part of the IT system/network be classified?  If so, please define operational needs in data classification.

A68:  Classification of data to be transmitted or stored will be determined on a case-by-case basis and defined in the site specific TD.

Q69:  Are there any interfaces to other DoD systems that are classified?  At what levels?

A69:  Interfaces to other DoD systems will be determined on a case-by-case basis and defined in the site specific TD.

Q70:  Will DITSCAP certification and accreditation be required?  If so, what type certification is acceptable?

A70:  Yes-- certification and accreditation will be the Government’s responsibility.

Q71:  Section L, C. Section III, page 67 requests cost information by Contractor Fiscal Year; however, section L.2 requests pricing by Government Fiscal Year.  Given the variance of CFYs, wouldn’t it be preferable to standardize all pricing inputs by GFY?

A71:  Pricing/Cost data is now by Calendar Year; convert to Government Fiscal Year only when completing Section B.  

Q72:  In section L, page 66 of the final RFP, under “Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other Than Cost of Pricing Data are Required,” a significant amount of data is required.  Given the page limitations imposed by the RFP, would it be acceptable to receive this information as an appendix outside the existing page restrictions?

A72:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.

Q73:  The solicitation letter states a base period of 36 months for GFY 04 – GFY 06; however, there are only 5 months and two weeks remaining in GFY 04 assuming an April 19th start date.  Please clarify.

A73:  The base period of performance remains 36 months.  We have added CY 2010 to the Section L instructions.

Q74:  On page 84, Section L.4.5, Tab B1, information is requested for the LSI and subcontractors, with a one-page limit.  As the prime of a team of subcontractors, are we correct in assuming that this is to be interpreted as a one-page limit per subcontractor?

A74:  Requested information is required for both the LSI and subcontractors; this tab is now unlimited.

Q75:  Given the page restrictions imposed by the RFP, is it the Government’s intent to receive the model contract (Section B and supporting documentation) as an appendix outside the page restrictions?

A75:  The “fill-ins”, including Section B, are to be provided in the General Volume as stated in L.4.1 and cost support documents go in Volume 5 Tab B3, which is now unlimited.

Q76:  The terminology, “Critical mission operations/functions/personnel,” and “Essential mission operations/functions/personnel,” are used in Annex D.  Is there a difference between critical and essential?  If so, please define the terms.

A76:  Critical missions and essential functions will vary by installations.  A critical mission is defined as a mission so important to a base that a FoS must provide continued operations.  These operations must continue to the maximum extent possible during a CBRN event.  An essential mission is defined as a mission that should be restored as soon as possible after a CBRN event.  

Q77:  Section L states that the purpose of TAB B2, General Business Innovations, is to demonstrate efficiencies of the past. In Section M, Evaluation Criteria, M.2.1, Subfactor II, 3 and 4, Innovative Business Practices (IBP) the criteria require that offerors describe IBPs at installations.  Does the Government wish to see IPBs that will provide efficiencies at installations in TAB B2?

A77:  Yes, Use Tab B2 to define IBPs.

Q78:  Paragraph 2.3.f on page 6 of Exhibit IV (Installation Protection Program (IPP) Overarching Test Concept Plan) to the RFP, states in part that “the IPP FoS is expected to operate continuously after installation…It will be operated and maintained primarily by contractor and government personnel…For one-year after fielding, the LSI will operate and maintain all of the FoS except the first responder equipment, which the LSI will only maintain. The installation will be responsible for operation and maintenance after this period.”

A78:  Noted, however, no apparent question. 

Q79:  This requirement for one year of operation after installation by the LSI is not reflected in the sustainment portion of the SOW. Please clarify what is the Government’s intent for the LSI’s role in “operation” of the FoS for one year after fielding.   If there is a conflict between the Sample Technical Directive (TD) and other documents in the solicitation, can we assume that the Sample TD takes precedence?

A79:  The LSI will provide maintenance of the FoS during the one-year sustainment period but the IPP FoS will be operated by installation personnel, with the exception of the biological detection (DFU) capability.  (The contractor will provide the routine filter change, packaging, shipment, and posting of laboratory results during the first year for the DFU.)  Maintenance will consist of periodic inspection of the FoS to ensure proper performance.  If performance is degraded, the maintainer will repair or replace as appropriate.  LSI operations will not consist of operating collective protection, performing medical surveillance, monitoring computer terminals, or performing Emergency Response.  Initial spares, including LRUs for GOTS, will be GFE.  In regards to the sample TD, the offeror should describe what functions the LSI will operate and maintain, and what functions the installation will operate and maintain.  The sample TD does not take precedence over the SOW.  See modified Section C.2.9.1.

Q80:  In the Sample TD, Section G, Fire Department (page 16), it is unclear as to which fire department is being referred to in the last two sentences. Is it correct to assume it is referring to the Off-Site Fire Department?

A80:  Yes, the last three sentences in the sample TD, section G, Fire Department refer to the offsite Fire Department.

Q81:  Annex B and its enclosures provide several lists of GOTS and COTS equipment.  Should bidders assume that the equipment (e.g., sensors) to be used in their solution to the Sample TD should only be drawn from the list in Enclosure 2, which is described as “Initial recommended COTS for use in the Installation Protection Program?”

A81:  Enclosures 1 and 2 of Annex B are not all-inclusive lists for IPP equipment solutions.  The offeror is free to select equipment from other sources as long as it is not a developmental item, and independent testing (preferably Government) verifies the system performance.  

Q82:  For Annex B, Recommended Baseline Equipment Solution Set:  Sentry is the only DSS listed.  Will the government accept another GOTS/COTS DSS to be provided as GFE for the Sample TD?  Has Sentry already been selected as the COTS DSS to be provided as GFE for the overall Guardian Program?

A82:  The Government does not have a pre-selected DSS as part of this acquisition.  If the LSI/JPMG select a GOTS DSS then it will be GFE and if COTS DSS is selected it will be LSI procured.  

Q83:  Section C.2.8.3, Training, Planning, and Exercises, states:  “The Contractor shall design, develop, conduct and evaluate one tabletop exercise and one installation‑wide exercise for each installation and provide an evaluation report with lessons learned and recommendations for future enhancement.  The exercises will be conducted at the completion of system fielding and CONOPS development.  The exercises will assist the installation commander and staff in developing their ability to respond to a WMD event with the IPP capability.”  (CDRL A002)   The Guardian Installation Protection Program Initial systems Architecture (ISA), Part IV, IPP Program Support Consideration, IPP FoS Exercise, states: “The LSI will recommend a certification process for the IPP FoS and develop a Situational Training Exercise (STX) to implement the certification.  The STX will be tailored to the installation’s IPP FoS.  The evaluation package will include an exercise director’s guide, in addition to a training and evaluation outline for the tasks.”  Can the Government confirm that the tabletop/installation-wide exercises in Section C and the Situational Training Exercise are the same?

A83:  Yes, Situational Training Exercise (STX) is the same as Installation wide exercise.

Q84:  As described in Enclosure 2 to Annex B, GOTS & COTS components, we assume that any changes required as a result of the Technical Directive Collective Protection system will be funded by the Government.  This includes filtration systems, HVAC system modifications, entry/exit vestibules, and limited building modifications.  Could the Government confirm that this assumption is correct?

A84:  The contract is a CPFF.  The contractor will be provided a TD with an NTE for an installation, and his design will be based upon that TD.

Q85:  In Section C.2.8.2, Fielding and Installation, paragraph 2, the term “resident training” is unclear.  Please define this term.

A85:  Resident training and new equipment training are one in the same.

Q86:  Will the Government provide FAR 45.5 and associated Government property clauses that are not provided in the solicitation?

A86:  See www.arnet.gov as stated in the RFP.

Q87:  The GOTS to be used in production may already be spoken for.  Does the JPO have an order placed for the GOTS to be provided in the Guardian program?

A87:  The Government will order GOTS items with long lead times, and the remainder of GOTS will be ordered when the LSI design and equipment has been validated.

Q88:  RFP Reference: Section J, DD Form 1707, Page 52-DD Form 1707 in box 3, Instructions, references SF 18.  It doesn’t appear that the RFP contains SF 18.  Please clarify the requirement for filling in SF 18.  

A88:  That section of the DD Form 1707 is standard/non-editable and includes examples of the type of “fill in” forms that might be included in the RFP.  For this particular solicitation, an SF 18 is not required.

Q89:  RFP Reference: Standard Form 33, Page NA - Box 5 of this form indicates the RFP was released on 24 Dec 2003.  The RFP was posted on 30 Dec 2003 to the Guardian web site.  Please clarify the correct issuance date.  

A89:  It was released in our system on 24 Dec and posted on the webpage on 30 Dec.  For any item the offeror needs to reference the actual release date, it should be 24 Dec 03 as stated on the RFP document itself.

Q90:  RFP Reference: L.4.1  Volume I – General, Page 78- The general volume will consist of the actual offer (prepared in accordance with L.2, Instructions for the Completion of Solicitation Part I - The Schedule, as set forth above) to enter into a contract to perform the desired work.  It will include a table of contents for the overall proposal, an Executive Summary of the overall proposal, Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, as well as all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror, Amendment(s) Acknowledgement(s), identification of technical data and computer software which the contractor intends to provide with limited rights or restricted rights, any and all exceptions to or deviations from the terms and conditions of the RFP from either the prime or the subcontractor, and an acronym listing.  Question:  This requirement states that the offeror shall include “all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror…”.  Please clarify if this requirement includes any fill-in which are associated with the Section I, Contract Clauses.  If the offeror is required to provide fill-ins for Section I, please provide the particular FAR clauses which are required.  

A90:  The General Volume is the appropriate location for any and all “fill-ins” whether portions of the RFP, such as Section K, Reps and Certs, or Section I clauses which require a “fill-in” by the offeror.  As each potential offeror is unique, it is the responsibility of each offeror to determine which, if any, of the Section I clauses require “fill-in” data for his proposal.

Q91:  RFP Reference: L.4.1  Volume I – General, Page 78 -This requirement states that the offeror shall identify all “technical data and computer software which the contractor intends to provide with limited rights or restricted rights …”.  Section I includes FAR 52.227-15 and DFAR 252.227-7017 which also require the offeror to provide similar data.  Is the offerors required to respond to both requirements?  If not, please clarify which requirement (L.4.1 or FAR/DFAR clauses) that the offeror should provide a response.  Please clarify if the response to this requirement counts against the page limitation for Volume 1.  

A91:  FAR 52.227-15 is not applicable and will be deleted.  DFARS 252.227-7017 must be complied with.  

Q92:  RFP Reference: Section D, Page NA- The RFP appears to be missing Section D.   Please clarify.

A92:  Section D was intentionally left blank as it is not required.

Q93:  RFP Reference: L.4.1  Volume I – General, Page 78- The general volume will consist of the actual offer (prepared in accordance with L.2, Instructions for the Completion of Solicitation Part I - The Schedule, as set forth above) to enter into a contract to perform the desired work.  It will include a table of contents for the overall proposal, an Executive Summary of the overall proposal, Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, as well as all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror, Amendment(s) Acknowledgement(s), identification of technical data and computer software which the contractor intends to provide with limited rights or restricted rights, any and all exceptions to or deviations from the terms and conditions of the RFP from either the prime or the subcontractor, and an acronym listing.  The Executive Summary will provide an overview of the offeror's organization and general approach to meeting the requirements of the solicitation.  The Executive Summary should identify pertinent aspects of the proposed approach including teaming approaches, if any, subcontracting, and relevant corporate experience and expertise on similar programs, and should also highlight particular advantages or unique approaches of the proposal.  This document shall not include any cost information.  The page limitation is five (5) pages excluding table of contents, representations and certifications, other fill‑in portions of the RFP; copies of contractor acknowledgments of RFP amendments, and signed teaming arrangements/letter(s) of commitment.  In the absence of a signed teaming arrangement or letters of commitment, the offer and each partner and/or subcontractor must sign the Executive Summary. Selection for award is predicated upon determination of responsibility of the Contracting Officer.  Such determination will be made in accordance with FAR 9.104 and will utilize at a minimum documents submitted in this Volume I.  Question: The second sentence in L.4.1 provides for what is to be included in Volume 1.  The fifth sentence makes reference to signed teaming arrangement/letters.  Please clarify that teaming arrangement/letters are required in Volume 1.  

A93:  L4.1 page 78 states page limitation is 5 pages, excluding teaming arrangements.

Q94:  RFP Reference: L.2 Instructions for Completion of Solicitation Part I , Page 74- The section states the offeror should “Assume a 19 April 2004 award date.” and “Assume CLIN 0001 covers GFY04, GFY05, and GFY06; CLIN 0002 covers GFY07; CLIN 0003 covers GFY08; and CLIN 0004 covers GFY09.”   These requirements don’t appear to agree considering a 19 April 2004 award date and a 36 month base period of performance, CLIN 0001 would go beyond GFY06.  Please clarify.  

A94:  The base period of performance remains 36 months and the RFP will be revised to include performance into GFY10.

Q95:  RFP Reference: L.2 Instructions for Completion of Solicitation Part I  and Attachment 5, Draft list of Sites, Page74- Assume the following schedule:

- Completion of 5 locations in GFY04 (2.5%)

- Completion of 30 locations in GFY05 (15%)

- Completion of 30 locations in GFY06 (15%)

- Completion of 40 locations in GFY07 (20%)

- Completion of 45 locations in GFY08 (22.5%)

- Completion of 50 locations in GFY09 (25%)

Question:

Section L.2, provides for 5 locations in GFY04 and Attachment 5 provides 15 locations for GFY04.  These appear to conflict.  Please clarify.  

A95:  Section L.2, provides for 5 locations in GFY04 for proposal preparation.  Attachment 5 indicated 15 locations that are currently funded for GFY04.

Q96:  RFP Reference:  FAR 52.203-11, Page 53- This FAR clause requires the offeror to complete Standard Form - LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.  Where in the offeror’s proposal should this be included?  

A96:  In the General Volume with all other “fill in”/contractor-completed documentation.

Q97:  RFP Reference:  L.2 (4), Page 75- Assume the CLIN 0001 DPPHs are spread evenly across each GFY within that CLIN.  Spread the total number of Professional DPPHs equally among the 24 Professional Government Labor Categories (GLCs).  Similarly, spread the total number of Administrative DPPHs equally among the 11 Administrative Professional GLCs.  Question:  Please confirm that the sentences, which read “Spread the total number of Professional DPPHs equally among the 24 Professional Government Labor Categories (GLCs).  Similarly, spread the total number of Administrative DPPHs equally among the 11 Administrative Professional GLCs” applies to CLINS 0001, 0002, 0003, and 0004.

A97:  Yes, spread the total number of DPPHs equally between the 24 Professional and 11 Administrative categories, for CLINS 0001, 0002, 0003, AND 0004.

Q98:  RFP Reference:- Section -- Paragraph Number -- Title:  L.4.5 Volume V-Cost Proposal, Page 85.  (Tab C) "Pricing Structure to the Sample TD.  Submit pricing data to demonstrate an understanding of the nature and costing requirements of the solution to the sample TD.  The offeror should demonstrate an understanding of what is needed to complete the TD effectively in the labor mix and pricing of the requirement, and demonstrate cost realism in the logical and appropriate use of labor categories to meet the requirements of the TD.  Question:  The Sample TD requires the development of the design of a FoS which addresses 4 threat scenarios. The TD does not talk about site survey (which has been completed by the Government), fielding and installation,  exercises, and logistics (sustainment). Although training, testing, exercises, logistics will be part of the FoS for the TD, pricing is not specifically addressed.  In the discussion of TD procedure (Technical Directive Procedure, page 30, Section H) it calls for each TD to include site assessment and design; equipment installation and fielding; installation exercise; integrated logistics support; and system modernization. This same section identifies that a separate TD will be executed for Program Management and system modernization.  Since it will not be possible to address pricing for installation and fielding, exercises, and logistics support until the system design is complete.  It is not clear how a TD for an installation will be priced to include all the above elements.  What is the government’s expectation regarding the elements to be priced in the Sample TD outside of design and integrated logistics support?

A98:  Assume Government has approved your final design, and cost all aspects of the TD from initial design, thru one year of ILS support.  Do not cost system modernization.  

Q99:  RFP Reference: Section H – Technical Directive Procedure, b., Page  30 and, Section -- Paragraph Number -- Title: Attachment VI.  CDRLs, Data Item No. A011 (FMHER), Attach VI.  Section H Technical Directive Procedure b.  Technical Directives will be issued by the Technical Monitor to the contractor incorporating (i) the specific effort to be performed; (ii) the required deliverables; (ie) the required delivery dates or overall period of performance; (iv) any Government-furnished property; and, (v) the Not-To-Exceed (NTE) amounts for travel and materials, if applicable.  Contract Line Item Number 0001, Installation Protection Program (IPP) Activity, as well as CLINs 0002, 0003, and 0004, if awarded, will be broken out in each TD to include site assessment and design; equipment installation and fielding; installation exercise; integrated logistics support; and system modernization.  Deliverables may consist of plans, charts, reports, briefing notes, tabulations, view graphs, computer software, materials, and presentations, as appropriate.  Section -- Paragraph Number -- Title: Attachment VI.  CDRLs, Data Item No. A011 (FMHER), Attach VI.  “Data shall be provided at the Contract Level, the TD level, and Major Element Level (i.e. Site Design; Equipment Installation and Fielding; Installation Exercise; Integrated Logistics Support; and System Modernization)……..Question:  Since the TDs will break out the five elements, and we have to report by the five elements, will we need to price the Sample TD by element?  

A99:  Yes, except for system modernization which does not need to be costed.

Q100:  RFP Reference: Section L.4.2 Paragraph Number TAB A4 Title: Master Subcontracting Plan, and LSI Specific Subcontracting Plan, Page 80. Master Subcontracting Plan and LSI Specific Subcontracting Plan. This section shall include an efficient, realistic, and cost effective approach to execute subcontracts including the proposed approach for qualifying potential subcontractors, pricing evaluation, selection criteria, and subcontracting administration. Include the offeror’s LSI‑specific small business goals.  With regard to FAR 52.219-9(d)(1) and (2), the subcontracting goals should be no less than 23% of the total contract value  (5% for small disadvantaged business (including historically black colleges or universities/minority institutions, 5% for women‑owned small businesses, 3% for veteran‑owned small businesses, including Service‑disabled veteran small businesses, 3% for HUB Zone businesses, and 7% for other small businesses.)  Minimum content requirements for the plan are addressed in FAR 52.219-9.  (LIMITED TO 5 PAGES IN ADDITION TO MASTER SUBCONTRACTING PLAN). Question: FAR 52.219.9 does not require businesses to maintain a Master Subcontracting plan regardless of business size.  How should an offeror respond to this requirement if they do not maintain a Master Subcontracting plan?

A100:  Include one page under TAB A4 stating that Offeror does not maintain a Master Subcontracting Plan and also include your LSI-specific Subcontracting Plan.  The page limit for this tab is now unlimited.

Q101:  RFP Reference: Section L, Paragraph 4.4, Volume IV – Relevant Present and Past Performance, Page  83. “This information shall be submitted on an Excel spreadsheet (see Attachment 3) with the Contract Number; Task Order Number, if applicable; Government Points of Contact (technical, management, and contractual), including name, address, telephone number, and email address; the title of the effort; the contract value; and the period of performance.  In addition, the offeror must provide a brief narrative addressing relevant experience for each contract.”  Question: The spreadsheet (file “Dec 13 Attachment 3 - Section L, Contract Information Spreadsheet  1800.xls”, as released 30 Dec., 2003) does not indicate the desired location of the “brief overview” that appears to be required within this spreadsheet. Where in the spreadsheet should the narrative be placed, and is the narrative limited in length?

A101:  Narratives are to be placed in the 5 pages.

Q102:  RFP Reference:  Section -- Paragraph Number -- Title: Attachment 3 (Contract Information Spreadsheet), Page N/A. Attachment 3 (Dec 13 Attachment 3 - Section L, Contract Information Spreadsheet 1800.xls) lists management, technical, and contracting POCs. The questionnaires themselves (in section 1g) appear to require Technical and Contractual POCs. Answers in the Q&A release said, “Section L has been changed to reflect past performance questionnaires only being sent to the Contracting Officer.” Question:  To avoid confusion in distribution, please verify which POCs should receive questionnaire material.

A102:  The Past Performance Questionnaires are sent to the Contracting Officer listed in the excel spreadsheet IAW Section L.4.4; however, the Contracting Officer should coordinate with the technical and management POCs provided in the spreadsheet.

Q103:  RFP Reference: SF 33 Solicitation, Offer and Award (Cover page to RFP) Block 1. Question: Contract DPAS ratings (DO or DX) ensure the timely availability of industrial resources to meet current National Defense and Emergency Preparedness requirements and provide an operating systems to support rapid industrial response in a national emergency.  No DPAS rating is indicated in Block 1. Will there be a DPAS rating and what is it anticipated to be – DO or DX?

A103:  No DPAS rating is currently assigned to the Guardian IPP program; however, Guardian is pursuing a DPAS rating of DO-C3.  

Q104:  RFP Reference: Section L INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL when.....page 67 Page 67   b. Section II:  Provide the following information on the first page of your pricing proposal – (Followed by a list of 12 items) Question: It would be apparent that the information requested on page 67 would be the first page of the volume followed by the information requested on page 84.  Is this information is to be included in the page counts of the Cost Volume Tab A, B, C or none of the above?  If the answer is none of the above, do we have a page limitation on these two information requests?

A104:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q105:  RFP Reference:  Section L.4.5 Volume V - Cost Proposal,  Page 84  (a)  In the front of the Cost Proposal, provide the following subcontractor information:

- A list of subcontractors and their addresses

- The anticipated percentage of total LSI effort allocated to each subcontractor

- The anticipated start date, if other than 19 Apr 2004 (This appears to be before Tab A)

Question: Is all the pricing data in Section I thru Section XIV (starting on page 66) before Tab A (This is where they have provided sample tables)?  Is there a page limitation for this data?  What is the Government's interest with respect to inclusion of the data required by the reference?  Under what tab in the cost volume is it to be included?

A105:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  The above requested subcontractor data should be included at the front of Tab B3.  

Q106:  RFP Reference: Section: M.2.1 Subfactor II, Integrated Logistics Support, Sustainment Planning, and Innovative Business Practices, Page:  88, paragraph 3.  Question.  The final sentence of paragraph 3 introduces four elements, the first two elements related to logistics support and the final two (elements 3 and 4) related to innovative business practices.  Does the Government mean that all four elements should be addressed within the context of Innovative Business Practices?  Should there be a paragraph beginning with …”The offeror shall describe the following elements:” allowing the first two to be discussed within the context of Integrated Logistics Support and the final two within the context of Innovative Business Practices?

A106:  The first two elements are to be discussed within the context of Integrated Logistics Support and the final two elements within the context of Innovative Business Practices.  See Section L Vol II TAB B1 and TAB B2.

Q107:  RFP Reference: Section: L Instructions for submissions of a contractor pricing proposal when other than Cost or Pricing data is required, Pages: 66-73.  Question.  Please clarify where in the proposal should the data requested in this section (pages 66-73) be included.  Also are there any page limitation requirements applicable to this information?  

A107:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q108:  Is the NTE amount listed under CLINS 0001, 0002, 0003 and 0004 for materials and travel meant to be the actual amount used by all competitors in order to level the competition and minimize unknowns?

A108:  These NTE amounts are to be used by all offerors and are inclusive of all indirect costs, including appropriate G&A and material handling fees.

Q109:  Does the term "Material" listed in CLINs 0001, 0002, 0003 and 0004 include equipment such as that specified in Annex B?

A109:  Yes; materials include all COTS equipment items.

Q110:  It is not clear if we are to price the Annex B equipment lists for GOTS and COTS, please clarify

A110:  We are looking for COTS pricing in relation to the sample technical directive.  For the overall portion, you have a NTE for COTS (i.e., materials).  The Government will provide the GOTS as GFE; therefore, those items will not be priced.

Q111:  For companies that do not normally use Facilities Capital Cost of Money, the only method to recover banking costs is in their contract fee.  In light of this, we request that fee be permitted on the COTS equipment solution set items

A111:  You are permitted to bill for materials, including G&A and material handling fees; no profit will be permitted for COTS/Materials.  See Contracting Officer letter, December 19, 2003, Subject:  Fee Philosophy for Guardian Installation Protection Program (IPP) Acquisition and Resultant Contract.

Q112:  We request a definition of operations and maintenance with regard to sustainment.  Does it include the provision of operators for the family of system sensors or is it only maintenance and sustainment?  We are assuming that the line replaceable units are GFE.  In as much as this equipment is GFE, will the repairs and spare parts be provided by the Government for sustainment and maintenance?

A112:  The LSI will provide maintenance of the FoS during the one-year sustainment period but the IPP FoS will be operated by installation personnel, with the exception of the biological detection (DFU) capability.  (The contractor will provide the routine filter change, packaging, shipment, and posting of laboratory results during the first year for the DFU.)  Maintenance will consist of periodic inspection of the FoS to ensure proper performance.  If performance is degraded, the maintainer will repair or replace as appropriate.  LSI operations will not consist of operating collective protection, performing medical surveillance, monitoring computer terminals, or performing Emergency Response.  Initial spares, including LRUs for GOTS will be GFE.  See modified Section C 2.9.1.

Q113:  We assume that because the mission essential first responder equipment is equipment we believe that it is excluded from the material line for pricing purposes.  Please provide clarification.

A113:  No, The material line includes all COTS equipment.

Q114:  If a bid is being submitted as a Joint Venture or new business enterprise how do you intend to evaluate, and adjust, the proposed rates in light of the fact that there is no rate history for DCAA to evaluate or supporting data to allow DCAA to make rates recommendations?  Will the proposed rates be incorporated into the contract?

A114:  Whether a JV or a new business enterprise, DCAA will review all available data and render an opinion.  At that point, the Cost Team will utilize the DCAA opinion and complete the cost evaluation according to Section M of the RFP.  Rates will not be included in the resultant contract.

Q115:  Reference pages 2 and 68 – 72:  Based on the information provided if the RFP it is not clear what the contract price (cost plus fixed fee) will be at award and how subsequent TDs will be priced.  Does the Government intend to prorate the proposed fixed fee over the hours for each TD?  Does the Government intend to include a rate table (with the rates including fee) in the contract which will be used to price each TD?

A115:  The RFP has been revised to add Exhibits IX through XII to assist the offeror in development of its cost proposal.  These Exhibits describe how the cost, fixed fee, and total to be in Section B should be obtained.  This CPFF will be the contractor’s offer to provide the DPPHs, travel, and materials in the performance of TDs issued under the resultant contract.  When a TD is issued in accordance with the H clause, TECHNICAL DIRECTIVE PROCEDURE, the LSI contractor will prepare a Technical Directive Management Plan (TDMP) to include estimated DPPHs and associated costs and fixed fee for performance of the TD.  Upon approval of the TDMP, by the Technical Monitor (TM), the contractor will perform the TD Statement of Work (SOW) and will be entitled to the total fee only if he provides the total number of DPPHs in the TD.  A rate table will not be included in the contract, however, the contract will establish a fixed fee rate per DPPH based on the total fixed fee in the resultant contract divided by the total DPPHs in the contract.  

Q116:  The page limitations on Volume 5 prohibit us from complying with the “Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other Than Cost or Pricing Data Are Required” on pages 62 – 72.  Sections I - XIV of these instructions require the completion of specific forms and charts -- from the LSI and subcontractors -- and state that referencing other portions of the proposal is not acceptable.  Section L.4.5 (d) states that the cost proposal is to be completely detailed and itemized.  The page limitations in Volume 5, even with Tab A’s exception for FPR Agreements, do not permit an offeror to comply fully with these requirements, particularly when several subcontractors are involved.

A116:  The data requested in pages 66-73 should be included in Volume V, Tab B3 which is now unlimited.  

Q117:  We request that a new “unlimited” tab be added to Volume 5, with specific instructions referencing the Instructions on pages 62 – 72.  To facilitate analysis by DCAA at multiple sites, we also suggest that Sections X and XI (containing data from interdivisionals and subcontractors) be allowed as separable attachments.

A117:  Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  

Q118:  Section L.2(4) page 73 is unclear with regard to CLIN 0001.  We cannot assume a start date of 19 April 2004, an end date in GFY06, and a 36-month period of performance for that CLIN.  For pricing purposes only, can we assume a 30-month period of performance for CLIN 0001 (April 2004 - September 2006), with the DPPHs phased evenly across those 30 months?

A118:  Assume a 36 month period of performance from actual start date for CLIN 0001.  The RFP has been revised to reflect this period of performance.  

Q119:  Reference Page 75 Section L.3 (11) contains the following direction; “Each printed side of a foldout shall count as one page.”  We assume that this means an 11 x 17 page with printing the front and back will count as two pages and an 11 x 17 page with printing on just the front will count as one page.  Is our assumption correct?

A119:  A fold out with a printing on front and back is two pages.  A fold out with printing on one side is one page.

Q120:  Reference Section L.2 paragraph 4 pages 73:  “- Assume the following schedule: - Completion of 5 locations in GFY04 (2.5%); - Completion of 30 locations in GFY05 (15%)”  The Draft List of Sites indicates 15 sites in FY04 and 20 sites in FY05 whereas Section L indicates 5 sites in FY04 and 30 sites in FY05.  We are assuming that the number of sites defined by Section L takes precedence over the number of sites expressed by the Draft List of Sites.  Is our assumption correct?

A120:  Yes, Section L.2, provides for 5 locations in GFY04 for proposal preparation.  Attachment 5 indicated the 15 locations that are currently funded for GFY04.

Q121:  Reference Page 79 Section L.4.2 (c) - (TAB A4):  We understand that the Small Business Goal is 23% is of the contract value.  Per comments made at the industry day in December, our understanding is that 23% of the Prime Contractor’s subcontracted amount must be to Small Business at a tier 1 level and that we can count tier 2 and lower subcontracts to attain the 23 % of the contract value.  Is our assumption correct?

A121:  Yes, Assumption is correct.

Q122:  When taking all of the Data Rights requirements and clauses into consideration there appears to be conflicting requirements.  Our understanding is that the Government will only acquire rights to products developed under this contract and the contractors will retain all rights to any and all data developed independent of this contract, i.e. the LSI is not required to obtain unlimited rights to COTS or non developmental products.  Is our assumption correct?

A122:  No.  The Government will get certain rights in accordance with applicable clauses in all deliverables.    

Q123:  Reference Sample TD pages 23 & 25:  For Attachment 1 – Sample Technical Directive, the Government’s Partial Solution for Detection Systems (pg 23) indicated that radiological detector systems will be deployed and that their locations will be shown on Figure 7 (pg 25).  Figure 7 on page 25 does NOT identify any radiological detector systems.  Are they part of partial solution?  If so, what detectors are used and what are their locations?

A123:  The locations and identity of the Radiological detection systems must be determined by the offeror.  Page 23 of the sample TD, detection systems para, will be modified to read:  “the location and identity of chemical and biological detection systems is indicated on the secure area and building site map provided in figure 7.”  The sentence that reads “These include ….detection systems” will be deleted.  

Q124:  Reference ISA Part II page 6 paragraph a.(1):  “a.  Minimize Impact to Critical Mission Operations; 1.  Baseline - Reduce critical mission interruptions by fifty (50) percent.”  Please define critical mission interruptions.  We are assuming that the 50% reduction in critical mission interruptions is referenced to the expected number of interruptions caused when the unprotected installation, e.g. the “as-is” installation, is subject to the CBRN case scenarios discussed in ANNEX C – THREAT SCENARIO RATIONALE.  Is this correct?

A124:  The critical mission interruption refers to any loss of the operational ability to continue the critical mission should a CBRN event occur.  The assumption that 50% reduction in critical mission interruptions is referenced to the expected number of interruptions caused when the unprotected installation , e.g. the “as-is” installation, is subject to the CBRN case scenarios discussed in ANNEX C – THREAT SCENARIO RATIONALE is a correct assumption.

Q125:  Reference Sections L.3 (4) on page 75 and L.3 (9) on page 76:   L.3 (4) “Written portions of the proposal shall be prepared using font Times New Roman 12 or larger and margins of not less than one inch (1”) on both sides and top and bottom of pages.”  L.3(9) “Pages shall be 8.5 x 11 inches, not including foldouts.  Pages shall be typed with at least 1.5-line spacing.  Except for the reproduced sections of the solicitation document, the font shall be Times New Roman with no less than a 12-point font size.  Margins on all four edges of each sheet will be at least one inch.  Proprietary statements, security markings, and page numbers can fall within the defined margin area.  Pages shall be numbered sequentially by volume.  These page format restrictions shall apply to responses to Evaluation Notices (ENs).”  Is it the customer’s intent for these restrictions to apply to the Cost Volume’s support spreadsheets and price breakdowns?

A125:  Yes.  In addition, note that Volume V, Tab BE is now unlimited.  

Q126:  Please explain the allowance for GFS in the Guardian proposal and, if allowed, how should it be costed in the Cost Proposal?

A126:  While it is anticipated that GFS will be included in performance of the individual technical directives (TDs) issued during the

life of the contract, it is not to be costed out in the LSI IPP proposal itself.  Since availability of specific GFS is, at best, uncertain until much closer to the time of actual performance, all such services should be costed out in a typical prime/sub relationship vs. assuming those costs will be paid directly by Guardian to the labs, etc. outside the contract vehicle.  If you plan to pursue the GFS availability should you be selected as the LSI contractor, you may address your plan for doing so in the non-cost areas of your proposal.   

Q127:  Is contract award contingent upon the potential LSI receiving approval for indemnification under Public Law 85-804 or applicable coverage under the Safety Act?

A127:  No.  Furthermore, any proposal submitted contingent upon receipt of either indemnification under Public Law 85-804 or Safety Act coverage will be deemed non-responsive and will receive no further consideration for award.   

Q128: Please confirm that the period of performance for CLIN 0001 will be 36 months from date of award.  Section L implies that CLIN 0001 expires on 9/30/06.   

A128:  The period of performance for CLIN 0001 is 36 months and the RFP is revised to include performance into GFY10.

Q129:  A clause entitled "Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other Than Cost or Pricing Data Are Required" begins on Page 66 of the RFP.  It describes cost data Sections I through XIV to be provided in the proposal.  We have two questions:  This appears to conflict with the instructions given for Volume 5, Cost Proposal, in paragraph L.4.5.  Are we to provide the information requested by both instructions?  The page limitations given in Exhibit L-1, Proposal Volumes, for the Cost Volume do not appear to accommodate including both the data required by "Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other than Cost or Pricing Data Are Required", and that called for in paragraph L.4.5. Where should it go in the proposal?  A question was previously asked regarding this issue and where the information should be placed, and the published answer was: “See Exhibit L-1 Proposal Volumes for revised page limitations.  Backup cost materials should be placed in Volume 5 Tab B."  However, in the final RFP, Exhibit L-1  does not appear to have been corrected - i.e. for Volume 5, Tab B it says "See limits for Tabs B1,B2 and B3."

A129:  Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.

Q130:  Past Performance Information, DD 1707 & Section L page 76:  We have a question regarding the number of copies requested for the 30 January submission.  We assume you require one only copy of Attachment 3, the Past Performance spreadsheet on 30 January with 5 hard copies and 25 CDs provided on 17 February.  Is our assumption correct?

A130:  No.  All electronic and hard copies of both Attachments 2 and 3 are due to Michele Williams NLT 12 O’clock Noon CST on 30 Jan 2004.  

Q131:  Section L.4.1 page 77.  Paragraph L.4.1 reads in part "...an Executive Summary of the overall proposal, Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, as well as all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror...This document shall not include any cost information."  When we fill out other sections of the RFP for inclusion in Volume 1, cost data will be filled in, i.e. Section B and the rate tables from pages 68-70.  Do you want Section B and the rate information to be included in Volume 1? 

A131:  The rate information required in pages 68-73 shall be included in Volume V, Tab B3, which is now unlimited.  Section B, however, shall be included  with the other “fill-in” portions of the RFP in the General Volume.

Q132:  Request that the Government clarify its answer to Question # 26.  Question # 26 asks, "Is single line spacing acceptable within tables, charts, graphs, and diagrams?"  The response provided in Answer # 26 states, "No, 1.5 line spacing must be maintained throughout the proposal."  We believe that the Government may have inadvertently limited its ability to receive adequate information to make the most informed selection decision.  Our initial investigations of the impact of this decision indicates that a simple organization or teaming chart will no longer fit on a standard PowerPoint slide using the Government's specified font and spacing parameters.  In addition, even a table which simply shows traceability between the contractor WBS and the RFP SOW will not fit on an 11" x 17" page.  Non complex graphics and diagrams that demonstrate our technical and management approaches cannot be portrayed on a standard page using 1.5 line spacing in graphics and figures.  We request that the government seriously reconsider its answer to this question and provide clarification as soon as possible to minimize the impact on all offerors.

A132:  The Government does not want to change the line spacing.  
Q133:  General:  Based upon the answers to several questions, the contractor understands the period of performance for CLIN 0001 is 36 months; please indicate if the following period of performance and subsequent DPPHs assumption is correct?


[image: image2.wmf]Section L direction:  Assume 19 April 2004 award date

Proposal

 Period

CLIN

of Performance

DPPHs

Material

Travel

CLIN 0001

4/19/04 - 4/18/07

890,730

$75,452,300

$3,594,200

CLIN 0002

4/19/07 - 4/18/08

581,465

$50,904,880

$1,890,560

CLIN 0003

4/19/08 - 4/18/09

649,098

$58,746,390

$2,049,680

CLIN 0004

4/19/09 - 4/18/10

717,134

$66,847,100

$2,208,800

Totals

2,838,427

$251,950,670

$9,743,240


A133:  The RFP is revised to specify the CLIN periods of performance so that CLIN 0001 is a full 36 months; CLINs 0002, 0003, and 0004 are 12 months each.  The resultant contract will allow for performance into GFY10.

Q134:  A71 on page 14 of Q&As:  Per the answers to the questions, “Pricing/Cost data is now by Calendar Year, converted to Government Fiscal Year only when completing Section B."  Section B currently requests Estimated Cost, Fixed Fee and Total Est. Cost + Fee for each CLIN in total.  Should the contractor modify Section B to have subtotals by GFY in Section B (there would be four for CLIN 0001 and two each for CLINs 0002-0004)?

A134:   There should be only one total for each CLIN in Section B.   

Q135:  Answers to Question 52 and Question 121:  L.4.2 of the RFP requires FAR 52.219-9 (d) (1) which states "Goals expressed in terms of percentage of total planned subcontracting dollars ..."  and the RFP states the small business percentage is of total contract dollars.  In addition, FAR 52.219-9 only allows capture of first tier direct subcontracting dollars to meet the required responses.  In the Q&A response to Question 121, the customer has acknowledged the program small business goals are 23% of the total contract value and allow for tier 2 and lower level subcontracts.  Can the customer provide a clarification to the following?

a) Does the customer intend the small business percentage to be total contract dollars which appears to conflict with the requirements of FAR 52.219-9?  b)  If so, can the customer provide a deviation from FAR 52.219-9 in Section I or Section H in the RFP or remove the FAR Clause to ensure a compliant response?  c) Can the customer please provide guidance regarding the use of second tier suppliers to meet small business subcontracting percentages?

A135:   The requirements in FAR 52.219-9 do not conflict with the requirements of the RFP and no deviation is required.  While FAR 52.219-9 requires 23% of the SUBCONTRACTED VALUE go to small business (all first-tier subcontractors), the RFP further requires a total of 23% of the CONTRACT VALUE go to small business.  The difference between the dollars mandated by FAR 52.219-9 and the additional dollars mandated by the Guardian LSI IPP RFP may be at any tier of the subcontracting pyramid.  For example, if the total contract is $1,000,000 and the subcontracted value is $500,000, the following calculation would apply:

$1,000,000 x 23% = $230,000 in total subcontracted dollars going to small business

$  500,000 x 23% = $115,000 in total subcontracted dollars going to small business that must be at the first tier

$230,000 - $115,000 = $115,000 in total subcontracted dollars going to small business that may be at any tier

Q136:  Section L, L2 paragraph 4:  In addition, some contractors may have a Comprehensive Subcontracting Plan (CSP) approved by the customer for all DoD programs and a Master Subcontracting Plan (MSP) approved by the customer for all programs other than DoD.  The RFP and Q&A response both indicate a desire for an MSP.  Does the customer want a CSP rather than a MSP when appropriate?

A136:  You should submit a currently-approved CSP if you have one.  If not, and you have a currently-approved MSP, submit that.  If neither the CSP nor the MSP is current and approved, so state and provide only an LSI-specific (i.e., individual subcontracting plan) for this acquisition.  The page limit for the applicable tab is now unlimited.

Q137:  One more clarification on the responses posted.  A59 states: Yes, the LSI will operate and maintain the FoS equipment.  A79 and A112 state: The LSI will provide maintenance of the FoS during the one-year sustainment period, but the IPP FoS will be operated by installation personnel, with the exception of the biological detection (DFU)capability. (additional detail as to what is to be operated by the LSI was included in the answer).  Can we assume that the more detailed response (A79 and A112) applies? 
A137:  Yes, That is a correct assumption.

Q138:  Could you please provide us clarification on this week's submission?  The answer to Q 130 implies that the Government is requesting 5 hard copies and 25 CDs of attachment 3 due by 1200 CST on 30 Jan., but Section L clearly states that Attachment 3 (Spreadsheet) is part of Volume IV which should be saved as a separate folder on the CDs due 17 Feb.  Does the government want 5 hard copies and 25 CDs of only attachment 3 on the 30th of Jan?

A138:  Yes, the answer to Q130 is correct; the CDs and hard copies are due 30 Jan 04, 1200, CST.  Also, please see DD Form 1707.    

Q139:  JPM Guardian Annex D - Rationale for System Performance Requirement, Part 1: Goals, et al, references a 14 September 2002 DEPSECDEF memo and the Urgent Required Capabilities Document dated 14 October 2003.  Assuming these documents are unclassified, can you provide or where might I obtain electronic or hard copies?  

A139:  The URCD is provided as Exhibit II of the RFP.  The DEPSECDEF memo, which is actually dated 5 Sep 2002, may be found at the following web site:  

https://www.denix.osd.mil/denix/Public/Library/SOH/Homeland/Publications/dep_sec_memo.pdf; this document bears no significance to the RFP as it is not part of the RFP.

Q140:  Could you please clarify the following with regard to the requirements for the cost volume? The solicitation provisions incorporated by reference include a requirement for the Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal when Other than Cost or Pricing Data are Required.  Section L, however, incorporates different instructions for Volume V - Cost Proposal.   It is our understanding that offerors are to prepare their cost volumes in accordance with the requirement set forth in Section L.4.5 of the solicitation, not in the format set forth elsewhere in the solicitation.

A140:  Because of the apparent discrepancies, Clauses 52.215-20 and 52.215-20 Alt IV will be deleted from the solicitation. 

Q141:  Can you please confirm that the IPP DVDs will be viewed by the evaluators on PCs and that we can provide a DVD with a Windows 2000 compatible executable file?  A previous Q&A implies this is the case with its reference to Windows 2000.  We request clarification within the next day so that we can maintain our production schedule.  Our concerns are that:  (1) If evaluators will/may view DVDs on commercial DVD players connected to televisions, then the DVDs will need to be authored in a lower resolution DVD-video format, making the PowerPoint charts hard to view.   (2) If evaluators will be viewing DVDs on PCs, then a higher resolution Windows 2000 compatible executable file format can be used that preserves the clarity of the original PowerPoint slides.  In this case, the DVDs may not be viewable on a commercial DVD player, depending on its features/format capabilities.  The previous Q&A read: Q:  "Should the DVDs be provided in DVD-R or DVD+R format?" A:  "Any readable DVD format running Windows 2000 is acceptable to the government."
A141:  DVD's will be viewed on computers only.

SECTION C - DESCRIPTIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

The following have been modified: 

        STATEMENT OF WORK
“Installation Protection Program (IPP) Lead Systems Integrator Contract” STATEMENT OF WORK

C.1  Introduction

     The Installation Protection Program (IPP) is a family of systems (FoS) that supplements other aspects of force protection at selected Department of Defense (DoD) installations to provide anti-terrorism (AT) capabilities against potential weapons of mass destruction (WMD) events at those installations.  Systems include readily available Government Off‑The‑Shelf (GOTS) items, Commercial Off‑The‑Shelf (COTS) items, Government‑Furnished Information (GFI), such as operational and employment procedures, Tactics, Techniques, and Procedures (TTP), Concepts of Operations (CONOPS), and training materials that together provide an integrated Chemical, Biological, Radiological, and Nuclear (CBRN) protection capability for 200 installations.  The IPP capability may consist of CBRN detection, identification, warning, reporting, decision support, individual protection, collective protection, decontamination, medical countermeasures, medical diagnostics, and medical surveillance components and will be tailored to the needs and composition of each IPP site to include provision of one year of sustainment.  The IPP capability leverages existing emergency response, physical security, communications and infrastructure to minimize the impact on installation operations and support requirements.

     The Joint Program Manager, Guardian (JPMG) will identify proven CBRN capabilities that exist in DoD and civilian sectors.  As an installation’s CBRN protection capability is developed, it will draw on these GOTS and COTS capabilities, hardware, software, and TTPs, for its components.

     In order for a GOTS system to be considered, it will have undergone developmental or operational testing and have had either a successful full‑rate production decision or a limited procurement decision.  COTS items will be selected based on existing test and usage data that indicate they may be viable candidates or have National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH), Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), or National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA) certification.  These test and usage data will require Government assessment prior to selection, and targeted testing to address data shortfalls may be required to validate an item for inclusion in the IPP equipment set.  The capability set will be tailored to the needs of each installation as identified during a site survey.  Where various options exist, these will be discussed with installation leadership to allow trade‑offs to be considered and the final site capabilities suite or configuration determined that best meets the overall needs of the installation.  

     Continuous surveillance of the commercial marketplace and Government acquisition programs will identify opportunities for technology insertion to optimize the program continuously as it evolves.

C.1.1  Mission and Background

     The Joint Program Executive Office for Chemical and Biological Defense (JPEO‑CBD) has chartered JPMG to provide DoD‑prioritized installations with an integrated CBRN protection and response capability to reduce casualties, maintain critical operations, contain contamination, and effectively restore critical operations.  JPMG has an assigned mission to:

- Provide an effective CBRN detection, identification, warning and reporting, and individual and collective protection system for each installation.

- Ensure the CBRN networks integrate with the existing Command, Control, Communications, Computers, and Intelligence (C4I) networks to provide effective information management.

- Provide a CBRN capability that will allow for rapid restoration of critical installation operations.

- Protect DoD civilians, contractors, and other persons working or living on U.S. military installations and facilities from a WMD event.

- Minimize total ownership costs of CBRN equipment fielded under this program.

     The IPP covers many capabilities and functions at an installation, including:

- Support to the command team

- Integration of CBRN protection with the installation’s C4I infrastructure

- Integration with existing physical security facilities

- Support of emergency responders

- Support to medical facilities

- Support to installation engineering, maintenance, operations, and public affairs personnel

    JPMG and JPEO‑CBD have established the following program objectives:

- Determining the capabilities packages most appropriate for each installation

- Maximizing protection, response, and restoration based on installation mission, threat, area response, and funding

- Minimizing Operations and Maintenance (O&M) costs

C.1.2  Lead Systems Integrator Major Functions

     The goal of the supplies and services hereby obtained is to ensure timely, energetic, and cost effective procurement, integration, and installation of current technologies for defense against CBRN threats.  To assist JPMG in meeting program goals, a Lead Systems Integrator (LSI) will be used to carry out the major functions below.

- Management, planning, and responsibility for total systems performance of each installation’s CBRN design

- Development of the systems architecture and requisite systems specifications required for the IPP (see Exhibit I ) to produce the capabilities documented in the Urgent Requirements Capability Document (URCD – see Exhibit II) and the Initial Systems Architecture (ISA ‑ see Exhibit III)

- Procurement of COTS chemical, biological, radiological, and nuclear defense equipment

- Integration of COTS, Government‑Furnished Equipment (GFE), GOTS, and GFI into a systems solution

- Development and integration of the CBRN system’s Command and Control (C2) architecture into the installation’s C4I network for installation protection and emergency responder control with no degradation in performance of the existing C4I system

- Installation, fielding, and sustainment for one year of the complete IPP system at every installation

- Integrated Logistics Support (ILS) to include training, spares, Acquisition Logistics Support (ALS)/Contractor Logistics Support (CLS) for one year, quality control, including configuration management, adherence to standards and specifications, and system acceptance and sustainment 

- Testing and Evaluation (T&E), in accordance with the Overarching Test Concept Plan (OTCP ‑ see Exhibit IV)

- Development and use of engineering models and simulations using analytical data tools as required

- Updating the system architecture with new technology as it becomes available

- Providing support for installation development of CONOPS, Memoranda of Agreement or Understanding (MOAs or MOUs), and other operational coordination support required at each installation to accommodate the CBRN capabilities provided under the IPP

- Development and execution of CBRN training and New Equipment Training (NET) training materials

- Development, execution, and evaluation of tabletop and installation‑wide exercises

C.1.3  Contract Purpose

     The terrorist attacks on U.S. territory in the Fall of 2001 have increased attention and concern over improving defenses against attacks with chemical, biological, and radiological weapons.  Current emphasis is to rapidly procure and install off‑the‑shelf, best value technology, to provide protection for U.S. military installations against CBRN threats.  The requirements for this effort are still evolving and some changes to the scope of work can be expected over the life of the contract.  The purpose of this contract is to obtain complete fully functioning CBRN protection systems for installations and to support professional program management, acquisition, engineering, and technical services for JPEO‑CBD and JPMG on the many tasks and projects that fall within the broad categories of CBRN defense and installation protection.

C.2  Scope and General Requirements

C.2.1  General Requirements

     The general areas to be supported for the duration of the contract are set forth in this Statement of Work (SOW).  These areas are not meant to be definitive, but rather represent in summary form the general areas to be supported.  For this reason the SOW is deemed to be a basic expression of the contract requirement.  Specific performance requirements will be set forth in Technical Directives (TDs) issued under the contract.  The TDs may be issued for JPEO‑CBD, JPMG, or other associated CBRN program management or requirements organizations.  

C.2.2  Contractor Responsibilities

     The Contractor shall assume total system performance responsibility for systems and data delivered and work performed under each TD, shall ensure proper management of subcontractors through analysis, critique, and assessment of the adequacy, timeliness, and cost effectiveness of work performed, and shall adhere to the small business subcontracting plan incorporated into this contract.  The Contractor shall coordinate management efforts with Government personnel as required.  The Contractor shall provide reporting as described in the basic contract and in each TD to support Government oversight.  The Contractor shall identify issues and formulate and provide alternatives for issue resolution.  (See Contract Data Requirements List (CDRL) item A003)

C.2.3  Interoperability

     The Contractor shall ensure interoperability between the IPP FoS and the existing installation systems to include C4I, security, meteorological, medical, fire, and maintenance systems.  The Contractor shall arrange for interfacing with local civilian emergency responders outside each installation, as required, for planning and communication, and shall maximize interoperability with local emergency responder equipment and capabilities.

The Contractor shall ensure interoperability between all required components and equipment within the IPP system including GOTS and COTS.  The Contractor shall conduct independent analysis and provide documentation of recommendations supporting integration of COTS equipment into the system design at each installation.  Proposed COTS purchases shall be subject to Government review and approval.  The Contractor shall provide recommendations on the proper mix of GOTS and COTS equipment for each installation.  COTS purchases shall be based on the Contractor’s market research with a written summary provided to the Government.  The Contractor shall recommend acceptance criteria for foreign suppliers that meet requirements and Government test parameters.  

     The Contractor shall ensure long term product availability through industrial base analysis and procurement of hardware from stable vendors.  The Contractor shall propose alternatives to one time purchases, such as bulk procurement, multiple year contracts, and leasing.

C.2.4  Government‑Furnished Equipment (GFE)

     For this effort, the Government intends to procure certain sensors, hardware, and materials only available through Government sources and will provide these items to the Contractor as Government‑Furnished Equipment (GFE.)  GFE will include items listed as GOTS, Government‑Furnished Material (GFM), and GFI.  GFI will include such items as technical manuals, publications, any specialized tools, training classes, and training exercises.  The Government will provide a list of available GFE annually on the anniversary date of contract award.  The Contractor and the Government shall closely coordinate their supply and delivery schedules to ensure all hardware is available when and where needed.  The Contractor shall provide a bonded warehouse(s) for storage of GFE delivered in advance of need.

C.2.5  Equipment Integration and Maintenance

     The Contractor shall, at each installation, integrate the GFE and COTS items into a family of systems according to the Contractor’s Government‑approved CBRN installation design.  Before installing the system at a specific location, the LSI shall develop an installation design plan that ensures GFE/COTS interoperability using the specifications and hardware provided.  The plan will also include installation‑specific items provided to the Contractor for this effort such as equipment documentation, building and utility system diagrams, installation maps, and local points of contact.  The Contractor shall maintain all integrated Contractor‑Acquired Property (CAP) and Government‑Furnished Property/Equipment (GFP/GFE) in an operational state for the one‑year sustainment period following acceptance at each individual installation. 

C.2.6  Engineering Support

     The Contractor shall provide the capability to perform a wide variety of engineering tasks, and be capable of providing flexible, responsive, and high quality systems engineering and technical support to the mission.  Engineering tasks will include creating system specifications and installation designs to include all civil, electrical, mechanical, structural, and C4I requirements.  The Contractor shall provide an engineering cell to support market research on current technologies to ensure continuous optimization of the IPP system and its components.  The delivery of system specifications and installation designs will be specified in the TDs.  (CDRL A004)

C.2.7  Command, Control, Communications, Computers, and Intelligence (C4I) Integration

     The Contractor shall be responsible for design and integration of the IPP system into an installation’s existing C4I network for installation protection and emergency responder control, including installation physical security and warning systems.  Proposed systems should be compatible with and utilize Global Information Grid‑Enterprise Services (GIG‑ES) and Net‑Centric Enterprise Services (NCES) capabilities as they become available at individual installations.  The Contractor shall participate in the IPP C4I IPT to define requirements and determine the appropriate architecture to integrate into the existing installation C4I network for effective CBRN information management.  (CDRLS A011 and A012).  The following aspects must be addressed:

C.2.7.1  Open Architecture Design for the CBRN Installation Protection Program

     Open architecture solutions are required for an integrated CBRN sensor and control system for installation protection.  Legacy sensors will be employed and will be provided by the Government.  COTS equipment that meets IPP requirements will also be employed and must integrate into the IPP open architecture design.  The Government may request changes to the proposed design to accommodate updates to information about the specific installation or to accommodate specific installation commander requests.  

C.2.7.2  CBRN Decision Support System

     A Decision Support System (DSS) must be provided.  Installation commanders will use the DSS to make key decisions in response to a CBRN event and for follow‑on activities, and it will also be used to train and support emergency responders in responding to, containing, reporting, and recovering from a variety of CBRN threats.  The Government seeks a generic tool that will permit installation‑specific tailoring to accommodate the specific installation map and procedures or reporting requirements unique to that installation.  

C.2.8  Installation and Fielding of Equipment and Systems

C.2.8.1  Installation Design

     It is the Government’s intention to conduct the initial installation surveys and develop the preliminary installation design for fielding of the FoS.  The Government will provide the preliminary installation design, survey data, and all applicable installation documents to the Contractor.  Under the direction of a TD, the Contractor will use this GFI to create the final installation‑specific design.  The Government anticipates completing up to ten installation surveys before contract award.  Following contract award, these installation surveys will be conducted with a Contractor representative.  The final installation‑specific designs will include all analysis and proof that the design accommodates the local regulations, laws, and the operational environment of that installation.  The Contractor shall provide a detailed equipment installation plan and schedule for each installation that must be approved by the Government before initiation of COTS procurement, construction, or equipment installation.  This design shall include agreements with the installation for performance of work, access, and coordination of schedules.  (CDRL A008)

C.2.8.2  Fielding and Installation

     The Contractor shall provide and be responsible for site preparation, installation of equipment, and interface with existing infrastructure for warning and response control.  The Contractor shall ensure adherence to applicable safety and security precautions during the site preparation, fabrication, and installation phases of the project.  The Contractor shall prepare site maps and as‑built drawings for delivery to the installation and to the Government on completion of the equipment and system installation and shall interact with Government agencies at the Federal, state, and local level as required to meet equipment and system installation and fielding requirements.  The Contractor shall provide complete fully functioning systems at each installation.  

     The Contractor shall provide the personnel, processes, procedures, techniques, training devices, and equipment to train civilian and military personnel to operate and support the IPP, including requirements for factory training, instructor and key personnel training, new equipment training, resident training, and sustainment training at gaining installations.  The Contractor shall consider Human Factors Engineering (HFE) concepts to describe and assess the feasibility of human performance requirements, assess the training burden associated with competing materiel designs, and provide an effective training program that minimizes the training burden.  The Contractor shall work with facility training personnel to provide programs that ensure implementation of the training required to maintain certifications and qualifications on system components.

C.2.8.3  Training, Planning and Exercises

     The Contractor shall provide CBRN training to installation emergency response personnel to enhance their ability to respond to terrorist attacks involving CBRN materials.  This training shall be provided in accordance with OSHA 29 CFR 1910.120, Standard for Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response; NFPA 472 (Standard for Professional Competence of Responders to Hazardous Materials Incidents); NFPA 473 (Standard for Competencies for Emergency Medical Service Personnel Responding to Hazardous Materials Incidents) and other related regulations and procedures that include responder actions at the Awareness, Operations, Technician/Specialist, and Incident Command competency levels.  This training shall include the CBRN threat; signs and symptoms of CBRN exposure; chemical and radiological survey and monitoring; warning and reporting procedures; and protection and decontamination techniques for handling CBRN materials.  In addition, this training shall include medical response and management of CBRN casualties’ aspects and shall be conducted in accordance with the Joint Commission for Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO) guidelines and other related regulations and procedures.  

     The contractor shall review and analyze any existing installation emergency operations plans, disaster preparedness plans or mass casualty plans to become well versed in how the installation would respond to a catastrophic event.  Following complete review of these plans, the contractor shall work with designated installation personnel to either draft a CBRN response plan/annex or to refine an existing plan.  As part of the planning process, the contractor shall work with the installation to determine the roles and responsibilities in a CBRN response of all base emergency response assets, as well as the integration of outside resources that may be provided by mutual aid assistance at the local, state, and federal levels.

     The Contractor shall design, develop, conduct and evaluate one tabletop exercise and one installation‑wide exercise for each installation and provide an evaluation report with lessons learned and recommendations for future enhancement.  The exercises will be conducted at the completion of system fielding and CONOPS development.  The exercises will assist the installation commander and staff in developing their ability to respond to a WMD event with the IPP capability.  (CDRL A002)

C.2.8.4  Final Report

     The contractor shall prepare a final report for each TD in accordance with the requirements of the TD specification.  (CDRL A005)

C.2.9  Integrated Logistics Support (ILS)

C.2.9.1  Integrated Logistics Support Management and FoS Sustainment Activities

     The IPP FoS will be selected by the LSI contractor with JPMG review and approval, from available CBRN GOTS and COTS systems.  The JPMG Objective Level Supportability Goals are:  A Turnaround Time (TAT) to replace failed items at installations within two hours; a Repair Time of five days or less for failed equipment (after the hardware is received at the contractor’s selected repair depot); and an FoS hardware “Availability” rate at each installation site of 90% or higher for each selected system in the FoS at the site.  Supportability metrics for FoS hardware TAT, Depot Repair Times, and Availability for each IPP TD will be set by the JPMG after a review of the LSI contractor’s logistics Sustainment Strategy plan and available JPMG program support dollars.  The LSI contractor will provide on-site maintenance support for all hardware installed at each site for a 12-month period (e.g., spare parts, labor, transportation cost, etc.) after initial installation.  At the end of the 12-month sustainment period, the offeror will provide a 90-day supply of consumables at each site for each system in the FoS.  The LSI contractor shall be responsible for all ILS logistics planning efforts, to include delivery of all selected FoS operating manuals, training of systems operators for each system at each site, and out-year provisioning plan efforts.  Additionally, the LSI contractor is responsible for follow-on maintenance support planning efforts after the 12-month CLS period.  The contractor will provide a logistics Support Transition Plan under the JPMG LSI contract (CDRL A009) covering at a minimum, how the FoS hardware would be supported during the post 12-month CLS period at each site. 

     The IPP FoS is to be operated by installation personnel, with the exception of the biological detection (DFU) capability. The contractor will provide the routine filter change, packaging, shipment, and posting of laboratory results during the first year. The installation is responsible for operating all other FoS functions.

C.2.9.2  Supportability Strategy

     The Contractor shall develop, design, and document a Supportability Strategy (SS) for the FoS hardware.  (CDRL A007).  This includes planning, management and program documentation for all ILS elements.  The offeror’s SS shall provide an ILS program that meets all supportability requirements directed by Exhibits (I) and (II) and the IPP system specifications developed by the offeror and approved by the Government during the first quarter of contract execution.  The SS will identify and detail the maintenance concept and plan; the supply support concept and plan for FoS hardware; Test and Diagnostic equipment requirements; technical data and operating manuals; training concepts and devices; packaging, shipping, and handling requirements; and other resources required to sustain the IPP system.  The Contractor shall submit a range of sustainment options for each IPP installation and provide projected sustainment cost levels with each identified support level.  The SS must be updated, as requested by the Government, to reflect the current maintenance and support concept and will be used as a means of communicating the Contractor’s support recommendations to the Government.

C.2.9.2.1  Maintenance Planning

     The Contractor shall recommend a maintenance concept for GOTS and COTS FoS hardware.  The Contractor shall develop sustainment procedures for all GOTS and COTS FoS hardware.  The Contractor shall maintain and update an IPP logistics support database using industry best commercial practices.  The Contractor shall provide a 12‑month sustainment on all on‑site FoS hardware.  The Contractor shall provide ILS support such as on‑site maintenance and repair of FoS hardware, spare parts, and parts transportation.  The Contractor shall repair failed Line Replaceable Units (LRUs) and subassemblies associated with FoS hardware during the 12‑month sustainment period.

C.2.9.2.2  Provisioning Technical Documentation

     The Contractor shall develop and maintain Provisioning Technical Documentation (PTD) and submit provisioning changes as they occur to achieve the IPP FoS support requirements.  Provisioning data shall be included in the SS CDRL response, C.2.9.2.

C.2.9.2.3  Spare and Repair Parts

     The Contractor shall administer and manage a repair program during the 12‑month sustainment period.  The Contractor shall track material shipments for repair to the contractor depots, identify depot stocks of spares, and report those failed spare LRU’s, subassemblies, and repair piece parts that are beyond economic repair.  Additionally, the Contractor shall create a spares listing, including consumables, for each IPP site.  The IPP site spares listing will be reviewed and approved by the JPMG prior to the contractor’s procurement of spare parts.

     The Contractor shall identify and procure spare parts to support FoS hardware to meet the above mentioned support metrics.  The Contractor shall repair, overhaul, manage, and distribute spare parts to satisfy all IPP on‑site supply support requirements.  The Contractor shall be responsible for determining requirements to support demand forecasts.  The Contractor shall provide the necessary services to accommodate anticipated Government requirements and use best commercial practices to perform these functions.

     The Contractor will be authorized access to the Federal Supply System as a Source of Supply (SOS) for peculiar IPP FoS items and common consumables when Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) Inventory Control Points (ICPs) provide the best value.  The Contractor shall provide DLA with an annual forecast of common parts only when DLA is selected as the SOS.  The Contractor shall determine stock levels and availability before issuing requisitions to DLA for common items.

     If deemed necessary by the Contractor, cannibalization or salvage of parts is allowable under this SOW to ensure replacement and repair piece part availability to meet the projected needs of both the Government, and the repair and overhaul lines.

     The Contractor shall provide all other tools, supplies, support equipment, utilities, and collateral equipment necessary to support the IPP FoS hardware.  If GFE is required in the repair support process for FoS hardware items, these requirements will be reviewed and processed by the JPMG.

C.2.9.3  Logistics Engineer Support

     The Contractor shall provide logistics engineering capability to support the IPP system acquisition strategy for continuous optimization.  Key Contractor activities include requirements analysis, system analysis and control, supportability analysis, support concepts, support data, support resources, future Reliability, Availability, and Maintainability (RAM) requirements, and an IPP FoS work breakdown structure.

C.2.9.4  Transition Plan

     The Contractor shall develop a Logistics Sustainment Transition plan (CDRL A009) for each installation.  This plan shall include how the Contractor would propose to support the IPP FoS hardware suite after the 12‑month sustainment period.  Each installation commander will then review the proposed transition plan and choose to continue the sustainment support under the LSI contractor, through a Contractor Logistics Support (CLS) arrangement, or seek internal Government and/or third party contractor logistics support of the FoS on‑site hardware suite.  

     The plan shall describe how the Contractor will provide a seamless transition with no negative impact on IPP FoS readiness at the sustainment program conclusion.  Also, in the Transition Plan, the Contractor shall define how inventories of repair parts stored at the site will transition to the installation, plus listings of on‑hand FoS consumables.  The IPP URCD states that the JPMG will deliver a 90‑day supply of consumables to each installation at the one-year transition point.

C.2.9.5  Automated Inventory Database

     The Contractor shall establish and manage an automated database to inventory parts, repairable components, consumable items, warranties, and subcomponents of the FoS hardware and support equipment items. 

C.2.9.6  Warehouse Management

     The Contractor shall provide warehousing of GOTS and COTS hardware items selected by the Contractor/JPMG for each installation’s FoS.  Spare parts for procured GOTS and COTS hardware and repair parts shall also be centrally managed.  The Contractor shall automate receipt, storage, issuance, packaging, transportation, and quality assurance for all parts and material used in support of the IPP FoS.  The Contractor shall use spare parts that are certified and qualified by the Government and are adequate to maintain applicable warranties.  The Contractor shall ensure the safety and quality of all material used.

     The Contractor shall perform a physical inventory of all managed spare and repair parts as necessary to maintain inventory accuracy and correct any discrepancies noted where data are available.  At the conclusion of the contract, the Government will require ownership of the specified quantity of assets rather than the specific serial numbers of items retained at time of contract award.

C.2.9.7  Configuration Management

     The Contractor shall provide a Configuration Management (CM) plan (CDRL A006) to document the IPP FoS hardware and software, GOTS and COTS, configurations at the time of delivery to military installations.  The configuration management effort shall include documenting physical characteristics of the IPP FoS hardware and software; recording the configuration on delivery; and documenting changes to the IPP FoS hardware baseline over time.  The contractor’s CM process shall provide a complete audit trail of decisions and design modifications for any JPMG‑reviewed and approved changes.

C.2.9.8  Obsolescence

     The Contractor shall develop a process for managing the loss or impending loss of manufacturers or suppliers for the spare and repairable items covered under the IPP FoS.  

C.2.10  Contractor Testing, Validation, and Recommendations

     The Contractor shall ensure that any COTS item identified as a candidate for IPP use has undergone adequate testing at a Government or Federally recognized facility or has National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH), Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), or National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA) certification to ensure that it is mission‑capable for its intended IPP use.  The Contractor shall submit COTS performance specifications and all testing information when a COTS item is being considered for the IPP FoS.  

     A COTS item that has not undergone such testing, but which displays extraordinary performance, may also be recommended to JPMG as an exception.  In such cases the Contractor shall obtain all test results and usage data for any COTS items so identified and provide these to JPMG for assessment.  JPMG will coordinate minimum essential testing with a Government test organization or facility to determine the adequacy of the item if no other means to test the item in a Government facility can be found and the item is viewed as a major enhancement to the IPP.  

     The Contractor shall, at each IPP site, conduct a full system test and validation of the final equipment configuration under JPM Guardian oversight for the purpose of ensuring proper integration of components and proof of performance of the installed system.  Successful accomplishment of this test shall comprise qualification testing for the IPP system and support system acceptance by the installation.  The specific acceptance test procedures and full system validation will be installation‑specific and will be part of the Contractor’s installation design plan.

C.2.11  Contractor Studies and Analyses

     The Contractor shall conduct studies, and provide concept system definition and related documentation to support the study results; provide independent analyses, simulations, and technological assessments; and perform other related tasks in systems definition, experiments, technology demonstration, system development, and production and fielding.  The Contractor shall study and provide recommendations on the use of automated tools for design and integration, operational assessment, and operational control.  The Contractor shall analyze, critique, and assess the adequacy, timeliness, and cost effectiveness of work performed by subcontractors.  The Contractor shall identify issues and shall formulate and provide alternatives for issue resolution.  
C.2.12  Contractor Market Research

     The Contractor shall conduct studies and market research and advise the Government on emerging technologies.  The Contractor shall develop plans to continuously optimize technology throughout the life of the contract for improving future capabilities and possibly retrofitting previously completed installations.  When approved by the Technical Monitor (TM), the Contractor shall implement these plans.  The Contractor shall work with vendors to identify equipment that continuously optimizes total system capability and performance.

C.2.13  Program Changes

     Changes in emphasis and program direction are highly likely in newly approved projects.  The Contractor shall be responsive to such changes as they are defined by the issuance of TDs.
C.2.14  Limits Set by TDs

     The Contractor shall perform specific work as directed by individual TDs.  Each TD will include, at a minimum, the estimated Direct Productive Person Hours (DPPHs); the TD ceiling for labor, travel, and subcontractors and materials; the period of performance; the required deliverables; the TD statement of work; and any special instructions applicable to the given TD.
C.2.15  Technical Directive Management Plan (TDMP)

     The Contractor shall provide a Technical Directive Management Plan (TDMP) that shall define a management system to plan and control the effort under each specific TD.  The TDMP must delineate how the Contractor plans to accomplish the effort supporting the specific TD, to include a breakout of DPPHs, travel, required material, a milestone schedule, and a schedule for the planned expenditure of funds.  (CDRL A001)
C.2.16  Technical Data

     The Contractor shall prepare and deliver to the Government the technical data in accordance with the requirements and schedules set forth in the CDRL DD Form 1423.  It is not the intent of the Government to have new data formats prepared where existing ones may suffice, and suggested Contractor documentation deemed beneficial to the project will be considered.  Thus all Contractor internal procedures, which are equivalent to the requirements of data item(s), DD Form1664 must be reviewed by the Contracting Officer and certified as acceptable in order to be submitted to the Government for its use.
C.2.17  JPMG Program Protection Plan

     The Contractor shall implement the IPP Program Protection Plan for control of critical program information, classified material, and sensitive data.  The plan, as updated, shall continue to conform to the requirements of the DD Form 1423 and further instructions contained in the current AR 530-1.
C.3  Management Functions

C.3.1  Lead Systems Integrator Contractor Responsibilities

     The Lead Systems Integrator Contractor shall provide the capability to perform a wide variety of tasks (to be defined in detail in the individual TDs issued during the period of performance) related to the effort defined in C.2 above.  The Contractor must be capable of providing flexible, responsive, and high quality management, systems engineering, and technical support relating to the missions of JPEO‑CBD, JPMG, and other associated CBRN program management or requirements organizations.  The Contractor's technical effort shall be under the direction of a Program Manager (PM).  The LSI PM shall provide the overall management of program, personnel, planning, quality control, direction, coordination, and reviews necessary to ensure effective contract performance.  The LSI PM and other Contractor personnel shall participate in integrated process teams as required.  To the greatest extent practical, the Contractor shall submit data and reports in digital formats and shall establish a collaborative Integrated Digital Environment (IDE) for information sharing among all participants in the contract.

C.3.2  Contractor Workforce and Training

     The Contractor shall ensure that adequate technical capability is available to provide responses to specific tasks during a 40‑hour work week.  It is the Contractor's responsibility to provide and maintain a state‑of‑the‑art‑trained workforce capable of providing the services specified in the TDs issued under this contract.  All related training, continuing education, certification courses, and other similar events are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Task priorities, short‑notice suspenses, operational constraints, and other potential impacts shall be managed so as to minimize schedule impact on all TDs.

C.3.3  Temporary Duty Travel

     The Contractor shall perform temporary duty (TDY) non‑local travel, as required in the performance of this SOW, as directed by individual TDs.  The TDY locations include many CONUS facilities and various OCONUS locations, to include Honolulu, HI, Europe, and the Far East.  The TDs will specify authorized travel locations and the NTE ceiling for the given effort.  Travel to locations other than those specified in the TD requires the prior written approval of the TM.  For all travel the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Joint Travel Regulations (JTR) and will only be reimbursed for travel expenses allowable under the JTR.

C.4  Security

C.4.1  Clearances

     It is anticipated that most of the effort on this contract will be unclassified.  However, some data and equipment may require certain Contractor personnel to possess SECRET clearance access or be eligible for immediate adjudication by the cognizant security authority upon award of the contract.  Future requirements for SECRET‑eligible personnel shall be established by individual TDs.  The Contracting Officer shall apprise the Contractor of any increased security requirements.  The Contractor shall submit adequate clearance packages within ten (10) calendar days of identification of any increased security requirements.

C.4.2  Access to SECRET Data

     The Lead Systems Integrator will require access to SECRET data in order to perform modeling, simulation, analysis, emergency response planning and to attend certain Government‑sponsored meetings.  These data and other related information will be used to check the adequacy of sources to provide the TM with an accurate assessment of the threat to the system and assist in the planning and the conduct of analyses, simulations, assessments, system tests, and other related tasks.  The SECRET‑cleared Contractor staff will be required to interface with key JPEO‑CBD, JPMG, and other Government personnel, and enter into SECRET discussions to assist in assessment and decisions on the programs.

C.4.3  National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual (NISPOM)

     The Contractor shall perform in accordance with the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual (NISPOM) (DoD 5220.22M) and ensure that all classified material is handled in accordance with the latest appropriate security classification specifications.

C.4.4 DoD Operations Security (OPSEC) Program

     The LSI shall develop an OPSEC program.  OPSEC is a DoD‑mandated program (Reference DoD Directive 5205.2, “DoD Operations Security (OPSEC) Program” dated 29 Nov 1999) designed to safeguard sensitive unclassified program information, operations, and activities, which, if exploited by an adversary, could compromise current or future plans and activities.  
C.5  Meetings and Briefings

C.5.1  Status Meetings

     The Contractor may host and conduct status meetings at their facility.  These meetings, as scheduled by specific TDs, may be structured to provide the Government with an up‑to‑date status of the Contractor's technical and programmatic progress.  Following each such meeting, the Contractor shall prepare a report for Government approval, as directed in CDRL Item A003.

C.5.2  Technical Interchange Meetings (TIMs)

     The Contractor shall participate in Technical Interchange Meetings (TIMs), to be scheduled upon request of the Technical Monitor (TM), to discuss and to informally evaluate the LSI Contractor’s efforts and accomplishments in direct relation to specific TDs.  During these meetings, the Contractor shall present necessary data to enable a joint review of their various assigned tasks, with attendant schedules and resource expenditures.  The Contractor shall participate in technical discussions and shall inform, in a timely fashion, the TM of any problems with contract execution and any proposed solutions.  During these TIMs, the TM may also informally evaluate the ongoing LSI performance.

C.5.3  Program Management Reviews (PMRs)

     The Contractor shall attend and participate in Program Management Reviews (PMRs), Integrated Process Teams (IPTs), and other meetings, as scheduled by the TM.

C.5.4  Technical Orientation Briefings

     The Contractor shall create, review, and provide technical orientation briefings and other presentations, as directed by the TM.

C.6  Deliverables

C.6.1  Hardware Deliverables

     The Contractor shall provide complete fully functional chemical, biological, radiological, and nuclear installation protection systems to include sensors, warning systems, command and control equipment, and associated installation and integration hardware and software.  Deliverables for each system will be described in the individual TDs.

C.6.2  Software Deliverables

     Deliverables shall include a Software Development Plan (SDP), which describes the approach for design, development, integration, and test of all software provided under this contract, including the acquisition, integration, test, and support strategy for COTS/NDI; executable software; and documented architectures, objects, and software in a sufficient form to retain the software design for re-use in a later potential systems acquisition.  (CDRL A011)

C.6.3  Commercial Computer Software Licenses  

      Unless otherwise approved by the Contracting Officer, commercial computer software licenses shall designate the U.S. Government as a contingent licensee, able to replace the Contractor as the primary licensee upon notifying the licensor.  A copy of the negotiated license shall be furnished to the Contracting Officer.  Per DFARS  227.7202, the terms of the licenses cannot be inconsistent with Federal procurement law and must satisfy user needs.  This includes the contractor's / subcontractor's needs for the software to perform this contract and the Government's needs for the software to accomplish the Government's ultimate objectives.  At a minimum, this shall include the rights to make an archive copy of the software, to relocate the computer on which the software resides, to re-host the software on a different computer, to permit access by support contractors, and to permit the Government to transfer the license to another contractor. 
C.6.4  Deliverables Documentation

     All deliverables, either stated in a given TD or required as a standard item pursuant to this contract, shall be strictly in accordance with DD Form 1423, the Contract Data Requirements List (CDRL).

     Individual TDs will indicate the media type, as well as the quantity of copies of the work products required for delivery.  The Contractor shall be proficient in the use of the current Government standard software and shall possess the capability to deliver the automated data in standard software format.  Delivery will typically be required only in electronic media form, and all such deliveries shall be virus‑free. 

C.6.5  Date‑Related Data

     Any commercial computer hardware, software, or systems delivered under this contract shall successfully operate in the twenty‑first century with the correct system date and without human intervention, including leap year calculations.  Furthermore, they must produce fault‑free performance in processing of date and date‑related data including, but not limited to, calculating, comparing, and sequencing.

C.6.6  Guidelines for Contract Cost/Schedule Performance Management and Reporting Requirements

     The contractor shall provide for overall program management of the contract, including but not limited to contract management and administration, cost/schedule performance controls, funds management and timely forecast of cost and schedule changes.  The contractor shall relate technical performance to cost and schedule accomplishment in cost performance and funds status reports, monthly status reports and program reviews.  The contractor shall provide the Funds and Manhour Expenditure Report and Monthly Status Report. (CDRL A013)

SECTION H - SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

The following have been modified: 

        CONTINGENCY/WAR CLAUSE
The government may direct the contractor to perform in support of a contingency operation or exercise outside the continental United States (OCONUS), as provided by law or defined by the applicable Army Service Component Command.  Services may be performed in the identified area of operations, also known as theater of operations, or in support of the OCONUS contingency operation or exercise.  In the event contractor employees are deployed into the OCONUS area of operations in support of a contingency operation or exercise, the following items and conditions will apply:

1.  Accounting for Personnel:

a.  Prime contract and subcontractor personnel shall not be deployed to an OCONUS area without prior notification to and approval of the Contracting Officer.  The contractor shall report to the Contracting Officer its employees entering and leaving the area of operations and shall report its employees in the area of operations by name and by location.  This notification is in addition to the CIVTRACKS requirement described in the following paragraphs.

b.  The contractor shall utilize the web-based Army Civilian Tracking System (CIVTRACKS) database for maintaining accountability of all contractor employees deploying/deployed OCONUS in an operational theater.  The database can be accessed at https://cpolrhp.belvoir.army.mil/civtracks.  The input form is designed to capture certain critical data on each deployed DA civilian and contractor employee to track location of contractor personnel in theater and to assist in positive identification of correct next of kin should notification be required due to serious injury, death, or if a contractor employee becomes missing in action.  All blocks on the form must have the appropriate requested entry before it can be submitted.  Data to be captured on all deployed Department of the Army contractor employees includes:


(1)  Name


(2)  SSAN


(3)  Type of civilian (contractor)


(4)  Operation and system supported


(5)  Agency/Company 24/7 point of contact with telephone number, cognizant contracting office with telephone number, location, and date entering and leaving the location.


c.  A userid and password are required for log-on to CIVTRACKS.  Brief instructions are posted to the Collaboration Center on the Army Knowledge On-Line (AKO) website.  To subscribe to the Civilian Personnel Community in the AKO Collaboration Center and open the appropriate file:


(1) Log on to AKO.


(2) Sign in.


(3) Select the “Collaborate” tab.


(4) Select “Army Communities” in the left-hand window.


(5) Select “Personnel”.


(6) If you have not already subscribed, “Civilian Personnel” should appear in the unsubscribed Army Communities Section of the right-hand window.  Simply check it and select “subscribe” on the tool bar.  (On-line help is also available here.)


(7) Select “CIVTRACKS Access_File”.

d.  Initially, deployed personnel shall enter data into CIVTRACKS before departing home station.  The deployed employee has ultimate responsibility for ensuring data is updated each time the deployed individual changes duty location, e.g., upon arrival/departue from CONUS Replacement Center (CRC); upon arrival at the supported unit/organization; assignment to another unit/location; departure from the unit of assignment, etc.  Data must be updated each and every time there is a change in duty location while deployed.

e.  To protect the integrity of data captured in CIVTRACKS, individuals inputting data will not be able to immediately retrieve data from the system.  Once data is submitted, it is protected by a firewall, and only authorized personnel with the appropriate user ID and password will be able to extract data from the system in the form of reports.

2.  Management.


a.  During a crisis situation or deployment, DA civilians are under the command and control of the on-site supervisory chain.  Within the area of operations, this chain is headed by the Theater Commander, who is the senior military commander and responsible for completion of the mission and the safety of all deployed military, DA civilians, and contractor employees.  However, for contractor employees, indirect command and control is tied to the terms and conditions of the contract and is achieved through contract modifications and assimilation of Theater Commander directive/orders.  Therefore, contractual language takes precedence over the contractor’s internal organizational/corporate policies.  The Contracting Officer is the only Government official with authority to modify the requirements or terms and conditions of the contract.


b.  The contractor shall ensure that all contractor and subcontractor employees comply with all applicable guidance, instructions, and general orders issued by the Theater Commander or his/her representative.  This will include any and all guidance and instructions issued based upon the need to ensure mission accomplishment, force protection, and safety.  Should there be a conflict with contractual provisions, the Procuring Contracting Officer will be immediately notified to resolve any conflict.


c.  The contractor shall comply and shall ensure that all deployed prime contract employees and subcontractor employees comply with pertinent Department of the Army and Department of Defense directives, policies, and procedures, Federal statutes, judicial interpretations and international agreements (e.g., Status of Forces Agreements, Host Nation Support Agreements, etc.) applicable to U.S. Armed Forces and or U.S. citizens in the area of operations.  The Contracting Officer will resolve disputes.


d.  The contractor shall at all times be responsible for the professional conduct of its employees and for the employees of its subcontractors.


e.  The contractor shall promptly resolve, to the satisfaction of the Contracting Officer, all contractor employee performance and conduct problems identified by the cognizant Contracting Officer or his/her designated representative.


f.  The Contracting Officer may direct the contractor, at the contractor’s expense, to remove or replace any contractor employee failing to adhere to instructions and general orders issued by the Theater Commander or his/her designated representative.

3.  Risk Assessment and Mitigation.


a.  The contractor will brief its employees regarding the potential danger, stress, physical hardships and field living conditions.


b.  The contractor will require all its employees to acknowledge in writing that they understand the danger, stress, physical hardships and field living conditions that are possible if the employee deploys in support of military operations.


c.  The contractor will ensure that all deployable employees are medically and physically fit to endure the rigors of deployment in support of a military operation.


d.  If a contractor employee departs an area of operations without permission, the contractor will ensure continued performance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract.  If the contractor replaces an employee who departs without permission, the replacement must be complete within 72 hours, unless otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer.


e.  The contractor will designate and provide contact information for a point of contact and back up for all its plans and operations, and, if necessary, establish an operations center to plan and control the contractor deployment process and resolve operations issues with the deployed force.


f.  As required by the operational situation, the government may, at its discretion, relocate contractor personnel (who are citizens of the United States, aliens in residence in the United States or third country nationals, not resident in the host nation) to a safe area or evacuate them from the area of operations.  The State Department has responsibility for evacuation of non-essential personnel.

4.  Funding.


a.  The contractor will prepare plans for support of military operations as required by contract or as directed by the Contracting Officer.


b.  The contractor will provide a cost estimate within two business days of a tasking by the contracting officer (or other time period as determined by the Contracting Officer).

5.  Force Protection.


While performing duties in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract, the Army Theater Commander will provide force protection to contractor employees commensurate with that given to Department of the Army civilians in the operations area unless otherwise stated in the contract.

6.  Legal Assistance.


a.  While contractor employees are processing for deployment at the CRC or deployed in the theater of operations, the government shall provide limited legal assistance in accordance with the following conditions:


b.  If provided overseas, the legal assistance is in accordance with applicable international or host nation agreements.


c.  The legal assistance is limited and ministerial in nature, (e.g., witnessing signatures on documents and providing notary services) legal counseling (to include review and discussion of legal correspondence and documents), and legal document preparation (limited to powers of attorney and advanced medical directives), and help retaining non-DOD civilian attorneys.

7.  Central Processing and Departure Point.


a.  Fort Bliss, Texas is the primary CRC supporting the U.S. Army Central Command (CENTCOM) Area of Responsibility for current operations.  Overflow will process at the secondary CRC location for CENTCOM at Fort Sill, Oklahoma.  (NOTE:  Fort Benning, Georgia will continue to process personnel supporting operations in the Balkans and CJTF-180.)  Contractor employees deploying OCONUS must process through one of these CRCs unless the contractor requests and receives a waiver from the Contracting Officer.  A request for waiver must contain the contractor’s certification that he is capable of providing adequate training and providing relevant information to his employees prior to deployment. 

b.  All contractor personnel processing through the CRC must make reservations for processing and for government-provided air transportation to the CENTCOM Theater of Operations through the Total Army Personnel Command (PERSCOM) at least 14 days in advance by calling PERSCOM Deputy Chief of Staff for Operations and Plans, Mobilization Division, at 1-800-582-5552, extension 1427.  Failure to coordinate at least 14 days in advance for CRC reservations or air travel, or arriving without passport and visa, may result in individuals being returned to home station/point of origin at unit/agency expense or experiencing extensive delays in deployment.  Visas are required for travel to the CENTCOM theater until further notice.  The SMDC Deputy Chief of Staff, Personnel can also provide assistance in making appointments.  


c.  When scheduling support through this reservation system, the following information is required:


(1) Name, rank and social security number.  (Unless otherwise noted on the LOA, contractor personnel are identified as “Contractor” with either GS-12E or GS-13E equivalency depending on whether or not responsibilities include supervising/managing other contractor personnel.  There are no other rank equivalencies for contractors.)


(2) Destination.


(3) Whether or not Government provided air transportation is needed.


(4) Latest arrival date, i.e., the latest date personnel can arrive in theater and still accomplish the mission.


(5) Contracting agency with POC and telephone number.


(6) The authority for the individual to deploy, e.g., LOA from the contracting officer.


(7) A 24/7 corporate POC, telephone number, and email address.

d.  Contractors shall assure that their employees conclude as much of the pre-deployment processing and training requirements as possible at their home station prior to arrival at the CRC.  Contractor employees should bring an Individual Readiness File, including two copies each of medical and dental examinations (less than 12 months old), a 180-day supply of necessary medical prescriptions, and a current eyeglass prescription.  One copy will ship with the employee, and the other will be retained on file at the CRC.


e.  Contractors embedded with units in a habitual relationship, such as systems support contractors for units, will conduct readiness and deployment processing and travel with the supported units.


f.  For any contractor employee determined by the government at the deployment-processing site to be non-deployable for debilitating health problems or failure to have a security clearance when one is required, the contractor shall promptly remedy the problem.  If the problem cannot be remedied in time for deployment, a replacement having equivalent qualifications and skills shall be provided in time for scheduled deployment.


g.  The contractor shall ensure that all deploying employees receive all required mission training and successfully complete the training.

8.  Standard Identification Cards.


a.  The Common Access Card may be obtained through the Redstone Arsenal Military Personnel Office, Building 3494.  Prior to reporting to the Military Personnel Office, each contractor employee must:

(1) Complete DD Form 1172-2, Application For Department of Defense Common Access Card, Defense Enrollment Eligibility Reporting (DEERS) Enrollment.  The DD Form 1172-2 may be obtained at http://www.dmdc.osd.mil/smartcard (Library/General Info section).

(2) Set up an Army Knowledge Online (AKO) account to establish a “us.army.mil” e-mail address (block 23 of the DD Form 1172-2).  The Army Portal for the AKO may be accessed at https://www.us.army.mil/portal/portal_home.jhtml.

(3) Obtain on the DD Form 1172-2 the signature of the Contracting Officer, the Contracting Officer’s Representative, the Project Manager, or the Technical Monitor.  The signature authority must have on record at the Redstone Arsenal Military Personnel Office a properly completed DD Form 577, Signature Card.


b.  Information regarding any other identification requirements may be accessed through Fort Benning’s CRC website at http://www.benning.army.mil/CRC.


c.  The Contracting Officer or his designated representative shall coordinate for issuance of required identification cards and tags for all contractor employees not processing through a CONUS Replacement Center.


d.  The contractor shall ensure that all deploying individuals have the required identification tags and cards prior to deployment.


e.  Upon redeployment, the contractor will ensure that all issued controlled identification cards and tags are returned to the government.


f.  Upon arrival in the theater of operations, contractor personnel may be required to obtain additional locally required identification cards.  The government representative who has cognizance for these contractor personnel in theater will assist in the coordination of the issuance of these identification cards to contractor personnel.

9.  Medical.

a.  The contractor shall be responsible for providing employees who meet the physical standards and medical requirements for job performance in the designated theater of operations.  Information regarding medical information and forms may be obtained at http://www.benning.army.mil/CRC.

b.  The government may require medical screening at the CRC for Food and Drug Administration approved immunizations, which may include DNA sampling.

c.  The government, at its discretion and subject to availability, may provide to contractor employees deployed in the theater of operations, on a cost reimbursable basis, emergency medical and dental care commensurate with the care provided to Department of Defense civilians deployed in the theater of operations.

d.  Deploying civilian contractor personnel shall take adequate precautionary measures to mitigate the occurrence of medical emergencies related to their physical requirements while in the theater of operations, taking into account possible difficulties in obtaining appropriate medications and supplies.  For example, deployed individuals should consider additional eyeglasses, a 180-day supply of required medications, pre-deployment dental work, etc.

10.  Clothing and Equipment Issue.

a.  Contractor personnel accompanying the force are not authorized to wear military clothing, except for specific items required for safety and security.  If required, the government, at its discretion, may provide to the contractor all required military unique Organizational Clothing and Individual Equipment (OCIE) and Chemical Protective Equipment (CPE) according to the theater to which they are deploying.  Personal clothing such as battle dress uniform, boots, etc., will not be issued.  An individual’s status as a contractor employee shall be conspicuously displayed on their clothing unless prohibited for operational reasons.

b.  Contractor employees not deploying through the CRC will receive their OCIE/CPE issue through the supported unit.  Contractor employees deploying into theater from OCONUS locations will be issued OIE and CPE from the Central Issue Facility at their OCONUS location.

c.  The contractor shall assume responsibility and accountability for these items and shall sign for all issued OCIE, acknowledging receipt and acceptance of responsibility for the proper maintenance and accountability of issued organizational clothing and individual equipment.

d.  The contractor shall ensure that all OCIE are returned (at the point of issue) to the government, along with all pertinent documentation demonstrating the return of issued OCIE to government control.

11.  Weapons and Training.

a.  Whether contractor personnel will be permitted to carry a government furnished weapon for self-defense purposes in the Area of Operations (AO) is at the discretion of the Theater Commander.  However, contractor personnel will not possess personally owned firearms in the AO.

b.  The Theater Commander may, at his discretion, issue weapons and ammunition for self-defense to the contractor employees.  Acceptance of weapons by contractor employees is at the discretion of the contractor and the contractor employees.  If accepted the contractor will maintain a listing of employees possessing a government firearm.  When accepted, the contractor employee is responsible for using the weapon in accordance with the rules of engagement issued by the Theater Commander.  The contractor employee is legally liable for any use that is not in accordance with host nation law, international law, and the rules of engagement.  Only military issued ammunition may be used in the weapons.

c.  Contractors will screen employees, and subcontractors, to ensure that employees may be issued a weapon in accordance with U.S. and applicable host nation laws. Evidence of screening will be presented to the Theater Commander.

d.  Prior to issuing any weapons to contractor employees, the government will provide the contractor employees with weapons familiarization training commensurate to training provided to Department of Defense civilian employees.  The contractor shall not issue weapons to employees who have not had proper training.

e.  The contractor shall ensure that its employees adhere to all guidance and orders issued by the Theater Commander or his/her representative regarding possession, use, safety, and accountability of weapons and ammunition, and shall comply with all related DOD regulations.

f.  Upon redeployment or notification by the government, the contractor shall ensure that all government issued weapons and ammunition are returned to government control.

12.  Vehicle and Equipment Operation.

a.  The contractor shall ensure that deployed employees possess the required civilian licenses to

 operate the equipment necessary to perform the contract in the theater of operations in accordance with the statement of work.

b.  Before operating any military owned or leased equipment, the contractor employee shall

 provide proof of license (issued by an appropriate governmental authority) to the unit or gency issuing the equipment.

c.  The government, at its discretion, may train and license contractor employees to operate military owned or leased equipment.

d.  All contractor owned motor vehicles shall meet required vehicle requirements within the Area of Responsibility and be maintained in a safe operating condition and good appearance.  All contractor owned motor vehicles used for transporting Government property shall be properly equipped and designed to ensure protection of the property and may, at the Theater Commander’s direction, be required to conspicuously display the contractor’s logo and/or name on both sides of the vehicle.

13.  Passports, Visas and Customs.

a.  The contractor or contractor employee is responsible for obtaining all passports, visas, or other documents necessary for contractor employees to enter and/or exit any area(s) identified by the Contracting Officer.

b.  Depending on the Status of Forces Agreement (SOFA) or other international agreements, all contractor employees may be subject to the customs, processing procedures, laws, agreements and duties of the country in which they are deploying to and the procedures, laws, and duties of the United States upon re-entry.  Contractor shall verify and comply with all requirements.

c.  Contractors are required to register all personnel with the appropriate U.S. Embassy or Consulate.

14.  Reception, Staging, Onward Movement and Integration.

a.  Upon arrival in the area of operations, contractor employees will receive Reception, Staging, Onward movement and Integration, as directed by the contracting officer, his/her designated representative, or the Theater Commander.

b.  The contractor should be prepared to move material and equipment using U.S. government transportation and comply with applicable transportation regulations, such as MILSTAMP for safety, packaging, and tie-down.

15.  Living under Field Conditions.  

The government, at its discretion, may provide to contractor employees deployed in the theater of operations the equivalent field living conditions, subsistence, emergency medical and dental care, sanitary facilities, mail delivery, laundry service, and other available support afforded to government employees and military personnel in the theater of operations, unless otherwise specified in the contract.  Any conflicts will be resolved by the Contracting Officer.

16.  Morale, Welfare, Recreation.

The government will, when approved by the installation or Theater Commander and consistent with the authorization, terms and conditions specified elsewhere in the contract, provide to contractor employees deployed in the theater of operations; morale, welfare, and recreation services commensurate with that provided to Department of Defense civilians and military personnel deployed in the theater of operations.  Some of these services may be limited to U.S. personnel only.

17.  Status of Forces Agreement and other Laws.

Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary, the contractor shall adhere to all relevant provisions of the applicable Status of Forces Agreements (SOFA) and other similarly related agreements, and all applicable laws.

18.  Equitable Adjustment. 

a.  If the Contracting Officer directs the contractor to perform in OCONUS areas in support of contingency operations/exercises under this contract, the contractor may submit a claim for equitable adjustment under this provision.  Such equitable adjustment may include additional compensation to contractor employees if necessary to obtain or retain personnel to perform in hazardous OCONUS areas.  However, no such performance shall be undertaken or continued without the express approval or direction of the Contracting Officer.

b.  Equitable adjustment claims under this contract may include hazardous duty salary premiums of up to 25%, depending on the severity of the conditions in question.

c.  Increased travel, lodging, food, security, and other costs associated with performance in OCONUS areas are also elements which may be included in equitable adjustment claims under this provision, if applicable.  Such additional costs will be dependent to some extent on the level of government-furnished support services in the OCONUS area in question.

d.  For purposes of this provision, a hazardous OCONUS area shall be any OCONUS area which is listed on the current travel warnings list at the Department of State website.

19.  Tour of Duty/ Hours of Work.

a.  The Contracting Officer shall provide the contractor with the anticipated duration of the deployment.

b.  The contractor may rotate employees into and out of the OCONUS deployment area, provided that no degradation in mission results and that personnel who have been deployed less than 179 days shall only be rotated in emergency situations.  For purposes of this provision, the term “emergency” means medical or family crisis situations where the employee in question could not reasonably be expected to complete a minimum 179-day tour of duty in the deployment area.  The contractor will coordinate all personnel moves with the Contracting Officer.  The Contracting Officer will make the final determination as to whether an emergency situation exists under this provision.

c.  The Contracting Officer shall provide the contractor with anticipated work schedule.

d.  The contractor shall comply with all duty hours and tours of duty identified by the Contracting Officer or his/her designated representative.

e.  The Contracting Officer, or his/her designated representative, may modify the work schedule to ensure the government’s ability to continue to execute its mission. 

20.  On-Call Duty or Extended Hours.

a.  The contractor shall be available to work extended hours to perform mission essential tasks as directed by the Contracting Officer.

b.  The contractor shall be available to work “on-call” to perform mission essential tasks as directed by the Contracting Officer.

c.  The Contracting Officer, or his/her designated representative, will identify the parameters of “on-call” duty.

d.  If appropriate, the Contracting Officer may negotiate an equitable adjustment to the contract.  

21.  Workman’s Compensation, Health and Life Insurance.

The contractor shall ensure that worker’s compensation insurance under the Defense Base Act is consistent with FAR clauses 52.228-3 and 52.228-4.  The contractor shall ensure that health and life insurance benefits provided to its deploying employees are in effect in the theater of operations and allow traveling in military vehicles.

22.  Next of Kin Notification.

Before deployment, the contractor shall ensure that each contractor employee completes a DD Form 93, Record of Emergency Data Card.  A copy of this form will be maintained at the CRC, a copy will be forwarded to the DA Casualty and Memorial Affairs Operations Center, and a copy will be hand carried by the contractor employee to the theater of operations.  If the CRC is not utilized, copies of the form shall be furnished to the contractor.  The contractor is responsible for next of kin notification, but may be accompanied by an Army representative if desired.

23.  Return Procedures.  

a.  Upon notification to the contractor of redeployment, the Contracting Officer will authorize contractor employee travel from the theater of operations to the designated CONUS Replacement Center (CRC) or individual redeployment site.

b.  The contractor shall ensure that all government-issued clothing and equipment provided to the contractor or the contractor’s employees are returned (at the point of issuance) to government control upon completion of the deployment.

c.  The contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer with documentation, annotated by the receiving government official, of all clothing and equipment returns. 

24.  Special Legal.

Public Law 106-523, Military Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Act of 2000: Amended Title 18, US Code, established Federal Jurisdiction over certain criminal offenses committed outside the United States by persons employed by or accompanying the Armed Forces, or by members of the Armed Forces who are released or separated from active duty prior to being identified and prosecuted for the commission of such offenses, and for other purposes applies to contractor employees deployed OCONUS.

25.  Security and Background Checks.

The contractor shall ensure all applicable security and backgrounds are performed on all personnel (to include subcontractor personnel) in support of this contract. 

(End of Clause)

        GOVERNMENT FURNISHED SERVICES
a.  The Joint Program Manager-Guardian (JPM-G) has established a Guardian Integrated Support Team (GIST) to provide technical and engineering support to the Joint Program Management Office (JPMO) and the Lead System Integrator (LSI).  The GIST is chartered under a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between JPM-G and the US Department of Energy (DOE).  Participation is open to all DOE laboratories and Department of Defense (DoD) Federally Funded Research and Development Centers (FFRDCs) under the policies of the MOU.  The MOU includes conflict of interest mitigation plans and firewall separations between GIST support to industry and the staff supporting JPM-G.

b.  Following award, Government Furnished Services (GFS), such as sensors and integrated sensor systems, decision aids, modeling and simulation, system integration facilities, and systems engineering services may be available from government institutions.  Possible DOE laboratories include Los Alamos National Laboratory (LANL), Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (LLNL), Oak Ridge National Laboratory (ORNL), Pacific Northwest National Laboratory (PNNL), and Sandia National Laboratories (SNL).  

c.  If applicable, the specific use and associated programmatics should be identified in the LSI’s Technical Directive Management Plan (TDMP) submitted in accordance with the contract clause entitled, Technical Directive Procedures.  If the Technical Monitor agrees that use of the GFS is in the best interest of the Guardian Installation Protection Program, the JPM-G will provide funding for the services directly to the applicable Lab or FFRDC.

d.  Points of contact for the identified institutions are as follows:


LANL

Ray Gordon


(505) 667-2205
rgordon@lanl.gov 


LLNL

Greg Simonson


(925) 423-0708
simonson1@llnl.gov 


ORNL

George Fischer, Jr

(865) 241-6635
fishergajr@ornl.gov 


PNNL

Terry Dougherty


(509) 372-4016
tj.doherty@pnl.gov 


SNL

Dan Rondeau


(505) 845-8420
dmronde@sandia.gov 

        OTHER DIRECT COSTS
a.  Travel Reimbursement  

          (1)  The Government will reimburse the Contractor for TDY/nonlocal travel as determined to

be necessary for the performance of assigned tasks and as approved by Technical Monitor within his/her authority as granted in the contract and his/her technical directive.

          (2)  The Government will reimburse the Contractor for actual transportation fare via the most direct routes (non‑first class) between place of origin and destination.  Cost for delays enroute (excluding Government‑caused delays) will not be reimbursed.  Per Diem will be paid at Joint Travel Regulation (JTR) rates.  To the extent available, suitable Government quarters, messing, and surface transportation facilities may be used.  Indirect expense is allowable if travel is normally part of the Contractor's allocation base.  

          (3)  The Government will not reimburse the Contractor for local travel.  Local travel is defined as travel within the area of a 50‑mile radius of the primary place of performance. 

     b.  Other Costs.  The Government will reimburse the Contractor for other costs (e.g. material, equipment, reproduction for deliverables, etc.) as deemed necessary for the performance of assigned tasks and as approved by the Contracting Officer.  Specific criteria and allowances will be incorporated in technical directives executed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this contract.  G&A expenses are allowable.  

Commercial Computer Software Licenses.  Unless otherwise approved by the Contracting Officer, commercial computer software licenses shall designate the U.S. Government as a contingent licensee, able to replace the Contractor as the primary licensee upon notifying the licensor.  A copy of the negotiated license shall be furnished to the Contracting Officer.  Per DFARS  227.7202, the terms of the licenses cannot be inconsistent with Federal procurement law and must satisfy user needs.  This includes the contractor's / subcontractor's needs for the software to perform this contract and the Government's needs for the software to accomplish the Government's ultimate objectives.  At a minimum, this shall include the rights to make an archive copy of the software, to relocate the computer on which the software resides, to re-host the software on a different computer, to permit access by support contractors, and to permit the Government to transfer the license to another contractor.
The following have been deleted: 

	H22 
	Assignment of Rights 
	MAY 2000 
	 


SECTION I - CONTRACT CLAUSES 

The following have been added by reference: 

	52.227-11 
	Patent Rights--Retention By The Contractor (Short Form) 
	JUN 1997 
	 

	52.227-12 
	Patent Rights--Retention By The Contractor (Long Form) 
	JAN 1997 
	 


The following have been deleted: 

	52.227-14 
	Rights in Data--General 
	JUN 1987 
	 

	52.227-15 
	Representation of Limited Rights Data And Restricted Computer Software 
	MAY 1999 
	 

	252.227-7020 
	Rights In Data--Special Works 
	JUN 1995 
	 

	252.227-7021 
	Rights In Data--Existing Works 
	MAR 1979 
	 


SECTION J - LIST OF DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS 

The following have been modified: 

PART III – LIST OF DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS, AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS

SECTION J – LIST OF ATTACHMENTS AND EXHIBITS


TITLE





DATE

NO. OF PAGES

Information to Offerors or Quoters (DD Form 1707)


30 Dec 03

1

Solicitation, Offer, and Award (SF 33) and Continuation Sheets
30 Dec 03

112

Scope of Work for Guardian IPP LSI



2 Feb 04


14 

(Included under Section C of the Solicitation)

ATTACHMENTS


1
Sample Technical Directive (TD)


28 Jan 04

25

2
Past Performance Evaluation and Letter

Undated


8

3
Past Performance Spreadsheet


Undated


1

4
Government Labor Categories


Undated


1

5
Draft List of Sites (FY 04 – FY 06)


Undated


3




EXHIBITS


I
System Design Process



Undated


1


II
Urgent Requirements Capability Document

14 Oct 03

8



III
Initial Systems Architecture (ISA)


21 Jan 04

52


IV
Overarching Test Concept Plan


12 Dec 03

15


V
Award Term Plan




Undated


11


VI
Contract Date Requirements List (CDRLS)

2 Feb 04


14



   with Attachment


VII
DD Form 254, Contract Security


20 Nov 03

3

   Classification  Specification





VIII
Acronym List




Undated


3


IX
Prime Labor Rate Information Spreadsheet

Undated


1


X
Report of Subcontractor Labor Rate Information
Undated


1



   by the Prime Spreadsheet





XI
Example Format for Distribution of DPPHs to
Undated


2



   Develop Composite Rate


XII 
Category Example/Individual Example

Undated


1

Standard Form - LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities

Undated


1

Instructions for Completion of SF – LLL



Undated


2

SECTION L - INSTRUCTIONS, CONDITIONS AND NOTICES TO BIDDERS 

The following have been added by full text: 

        COMMERCIAL COMPUTER SOFTWARE
Commercial Computer Software and Commercial Technical Data.  Offers submitted in response to this  solicitation shall identify the commercial computer software or technical data that the offeror proposes to furnish to the Government. The listing shall be submitted as an attachment to the proposal and shall identify the commercial item, summarize the restrictions on the Government, and specify pricing for any required maintenance and support. 
The following have been modified: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF A CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL WHEN OTHER THAN COST OR PRICING DATA ARE REQUIRED:  Cost proposals shall be submitted in accordance with FAR 15.408(l) and with 15.403-5.  In submitting their proposal, the offeror grants the Contracting Officer or an authorized representative the right to examine, at any time before award, books, records, documents, or other directly pertinent records to verify any request for an exception under this provision, and the reasonableness of price.  For items priced using catalog or market prices, or law or regulation, access does not extend to cost or profit information or other data relevant solely to the offeror’s determination of the prices to be offered in the catalog or marketplace.In addition, provide the following:


a. 
Section I:  For pricing purposes, provide an estimated start date of the effort.  Include the proposed contract type and period of performance.  Provide any other General Information that may be beneficial in evaluation of your proposal.

b. Section II:  Provide the following information on the first page of your pricing proposal:

(1) Solicitation number;

(2) Name, address, and e-mail address of offeror;

(3) Name, telephone number, and e-mail address of point of contact at contractor’s facility;

(4) Name, address, voice telephone number of contract administration office;

(5) Name, address, voice telephone number, fax number, and e-mail address of cognizant Defense Contract Audit Agency;

(6) Type of contract (that is, FFP, FPI, CPFF, CPFF Level of Effort, etc.);

(7) Proposed cost; profit or fee dollars, cost of money dollars, and total for overall contract;

(8) Place(s) and period(s) of performance;

(9) Whether your organization is operating under an accounting system that has been approved for cost type contracts.  Whether you organization is subject to cost accounting standards; whether your organization has submitted a CASB Disclosure Statement, and if it has been determined adequate; whether you have been notified that you are or may be in noncompliance with your Disclosure Statement or CAS, and, if yes, an explanation; whether any aspect of this proposal is inconsistent with your disclosed practices or applicable CAS, and, if so, an explanation; and whether the proposal is consistent with your established estimating and accounting principles and procedures and FAR Part 31, Cost Principles, and, if not, an explanation;

(10) A listing by Line Item Number of each line item’s applicable cost, fee, COM, and total dollars;

(11) Date of submission; and

(12) Name, title and signature of authorized representative.


a.
Section III:  Provide a cost element breakdown by Contract Line Item Number (CLIN) by contractor calendar year (CCY).  Insure that the hours in the Technical volume are trackable to the Cost Volume.


b.
Section IV:  Provide a grand total rollup summary by cost element breakdown by CCY. (See Exhibit XI)


c.
Section V:  Complete the following Request for Rate Information Form for the prime contractor, for each interdivisional, and for each subcontract proposal.

Request for Rate Information

 (Note to contractor:  Please verify that this is the correct DCAA and DCMC  that has cognizance over you and that you are providing their latest correct addresses and phone numbers.)

DCAA Address 



    DCMC Address

Voice Phone Number:  (   )


    Voice Phone Number:  (   )

E-Mail Address:




    E-Mail Address:
Fax Phone Number:  (   )



    Fax Phone Number:  (   )

Type of Contract:   CPFF
Proposed $ Amount:

Proposal Identifying Numbers:

(Note to contractor:  Such as RFP number, Contractor Proposal No. - Explain type of identifier.)

Contractor Name:

Contractor Address: 

(Note to contractor:  include division and zip code)

Prime Contractor (  )       Subcontractor (  )    If  subcontractor, provide Prime contractor 






     name:

Small Business (  )      Large Business (  )      8a Contractor (  )

Title of Effort:

(Note to contractor:  Include any applicable contract modification numbers here.)

Point of Contact at Contractor’s Facility:

POC’s phone number:



POC’s E-Mail Address:

POC’s Fax number:
Note to contractor:   Provide in the following chart ALL rates,

 (Direct, Indirect and Other Direct Cost rates) which are included in your proposal.  Insure that DCAA has a complete “full-up” copy of your proposal.  Also insure that DCAA has the backup to all proposed rates.

(Referencing other pages in the proposal as a substitute for completing the Chart is UNACCEPTABLE!)




Base* in Proposal
     Proposed            Contractor


Category

to Which

     Rate
          Calendar Year




Rate is Applied                 

(Note to contractor:  Include full description to enable DCAA to identify category referenced)


* Examples of Bases:  For Direct Labor the base might be hours; for Overhead the base might be Direct Labor Dollars; For Fee the base might be Labor plus Overhead plus Other Direct Cost.







          If applicable, Date of Approval,

Type of System
          Applicability to this contract    Point of Contact and POC phone number


Accounting System

Cost Accounting

Standards Disclosure

Statement

Purchasing System

Estimating System


Material Management 

  Accounting System

In the space below, list and explain all Non-Compliance with Cost Accounting Standards issues as well as Accounting, Estimating, Material and Purchasing System deficiencies.  Also explain their applicability to this proposal and actions taken by you to correct the deficiencies (or comments on the deficiencies).


d.
Section VI:  Provide a breakdown of labor rates by Contractor Labor Category title (as recognized by DCAA)  for the basic effort and options, if proposed, and each CCY, as follows:  Equate the contractor labor category titles shown below to each labor category contained in the solicitation.  See chart below for an example of how to complete this table.

TABLE 1 - CLIN Level, Contractor Calendar Year Level

	Contractor Labor Category(a)
	Base Labor 

Rate (b)
	Escalation 

Rate (c)
	No. of Months

(d) at Proposed 

Escalation Rate
	Month/Year to 

Which you are 

Escalating
	Escalated

 Labor Rate

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


TABLE 1, Continued - CLIN Level, Contractor Calendar Year Level

	Contractor Labor Category (a)
	Uncompensated O/T Percentage (e)
	Rate Including Uncompensated O/T

	
	
	


(a)
Contractor Labor Category - Provide contractor category title(s) or name(s) of individual(s), as applicable.

(b)
Base Labor Rate - Provide base labor rate and effective date of payroll register from which base labor rates were obtained.  Provide starting date of base rate for subsequent CLINs.

(c)
Escalation Rate - Provide escalation rate and source of escalation - i.e. Data Resources Incorporated recommendations, company experience (provide escalation rates experienced over the last two years, if applicable), etc.  Add escalation rate and number of month columns as necessary to accommodate for additional different escalation rates within the same Contractor Fiscal Year rate calculation.

(d)
Number of Months at the proposed escalation rate - In the first year, begin escalation at payroll register date.

(e)
Uncompensated Rate - Provide uncompensated overtime percentage; example of computation follows, including number of hours per week which are proposed as uncompensated hours.

45 hours proposed on a 40 hour work week basis = 45/40 = 12.5% uncompensated overtime percentage.

OR

Contractor, provide the following rationale for the basic effort and options if you are proposing future labor rates in accordance with a forward pricing rate agreement/forward pricing rates.

CLIN Level

Contractor CY Level

	Contractor Labor Category (a)
	Labor Rate by CFY
	Effective Date of Rate
	Number of Months

	
	
	
	


(a)
Contractor Labor Category - Provide contractor category title(s) or name(s) of individual(s), as applicable.

SECTION VI CHART EXAMPLE

CLIN 1

	Government

Category
	Contractor

Category
	 Base

Rate

a/o 1/98
	Esc

Rate
	# Mos

@ Prop

Esc Rate
	Mo/Yr

To Which

Escalated
	Escalated

Rate
	Uncomp

O/T %


	Rate Incl Uncomp O/T

	Laser Technician
	Sr Tech I
	$50.00
	3% per yr
	14 months
	3/99
	$51.75
	10%
	$47.05



	Laser Technician
	Sr Tech II
	$45.00
	3% per yr
	14 months
	3/99
	$46.57
	10%
	$42.34

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Laser Technician
	Tom Sawyer
	$50.00
	3% per yr
	14 months
	3/99
	$51.75
	10%
	$47.05



	Laser Technician
	Harry Truman
	$45.00
	3% per yr
	14 months
	3/99
	$46.57
	10%
	$42.34


Note:  The above chart is provided as an example only.  The contractor categories, escalation rate, uncompensated overtime percentage, labor rates and dates are fictitious.  Your chart should show your company’s labor categories (as recognized by DCAA) or individuals’ names, the appropriate escalation, uncompensated overtime percentage (if applicable), labor rates, and the appropriate dates.  The chart provides examples using contractor labor categories (Sr Tech I and Sr Tech II) and one using individual names (Tom Sawyer and Harry Truman).    The above chart shows a breakdown for Laser Technician for CLIN 1 only.  You would need to provide similar information for Laser Technician for other CLINs (or provide an explanation of how the rates are computed for future periods).  You would need to provide similar information for all RFP categories (Chief Laser Engineer, Laser Engineer, Chief Optical Engineer, Optical Engineer, Optical Technician, Engineer Technician, Chief Software Engineer/Analyst, Software Engineer/Analyst, Computer Programmer, Computer Technician, Electrical/Electronics Engineer, Electrical/Electronics Technician.)


e.    Section VII:  Based on the information included in Section VI above, provide labor cost tables, by CLIN, by CFY, showing hours proposed by contractor labor category, labor rate, and resulting total labor dollars.


f.
Section VIIIa:  Provide a breakdown of indirect rates by Contractor Category title (as recognized by DCAA) for the basic effort and options, if proposed, broken down as follows:

	Contractor Indirect Category
	Indirect Rate by CFY
	Effective Date of Rate
	Number of Months

	
	
	
	



g.
Section VIIIb:  Provide the actuals for the last two (2) years for all indirect rates which you are proposing.  If a comparison of this procurement’s rates to prior year rates is not applicable, so state and state reason for differences.


h.
Section VIIIc:  Provide the computations (i.e. breakdown of expenses, base) for each proposed indirect rate.


i.
Section X:  If interdivisional transfers of cost are applicable, provide the following for each division:



1.
Information in Section II of L. for each division.



2.
A cost element breakdown by CLIN by CCY.  In addition, provide a Grand Total rollup summary by cost element breakdown.



3.  Explanations of each cost element as delineated in the instructions to the prime contractor in this announcement.
 
j.   Section XI:  For each subcontract proposal.  



1.
Information in Section II of L. for each division.



2.
A cost element breakdown by CLIN by CCY.  In addition, provide a Grand Total rollup summary by cost element breakdown.



3.
Explanations of each cost element as delineated in the instructions to the prime contractor in this announcement.


k.    Section XII:  Provide your completed CASB-CMF and DD Form 1861-1 for each Cost Accounting Period applicable to this proposal.  Insure that your calculations are based on the latest Treasury Rate.

l.  Section XIII:  DPPH:  Following are the Government’s breakdowns of the DPPH level of effort

under this solicitation /contract.  Use these breakdowns in your proposal.  The resultant contract will contain the DPPH shown below for each CLIN without any fiscal year breakdowns.  If you split the DPPH between prime and subcontractor(s), or between contractor fiscal years, provide a chart that shows that the total proposed equals the number shown below. (See Section L.2)
	CLINS
	CCY
	CCY
	CCY

	
	
	
	



m.
Section XIV:  Provide your proposed fee/profit percentage and base.
NOTICE TO OFFERORS:  The Government will utilize the contractors listed below to provide technical analysis during the evaluations of the Technical, Management, and Cost Volumes of the proposal submitted in response to this Request for Proposals.  These contractors are restricted by the "Organizational Conflict of Interest" provision of their respective contracts from participating as a contractor, subcontractor, or consultant on the proposed program other than on a noncompetitive basis under a prime contract with the Government.  A "Certificate of Non‑Disclosure" will be executed by each individual from these contractors prior to review of the proposal.  The offeror agrees, by the submission of a proposal, to have it reviewed by these contractors for the purpose of providing analysis only.PRIVATE 


Tecolote, Inc. and  Camber Corporation
Section L
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS

L.1  Submission of Proposals

In addition to copies required in the paragraph below entitled General, your response to this solicitation shall be submitted as follows:

One (1) copy of each of the Management, Technical, and Cost proposals and one (1) copy of SF 33 and Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, to your cognizant Administrative Contracting Officer (ACO) and Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA), whose names, addresses, and telephone numbers the offeror shall provide below:

ACO: 
                                                                      
DCAA:  __________________________________     


                                                                      
               __________________________________

                                                                      
               __________________________________

In addition, the offeror shall require all appropriate subcontractors to submit one (1) copy of their complete proposal package to their cognizant ACO and DCAA, as well as one (1) copy to the prime contractors ACO and DCAA.

L.2  Instructions for the Completion of Solicitation Part I ‑ The Schedule 

The offeror shall complete the blank spaces in the following solicitation schedule sections: 

     (1)  SF 33:  Complete Items 12 through 18 as applicable.

     (2)  Insert the total dollar amount proposed for CLINs 0001 through 0006.

     (3)  For each of the applicable CLINS:

            (a)  Insert estimated cost dollar amount proposed, exclusive of fixed fee, in space provided.

            (b)  Insert fixed fee dollar amount proposed in space provided.

            (c)  Insert the total contract dollar amount proposed in space provided (include total estimated cost, total fixed fee, and contract total).

     (4)  Utilize the following assumptions/information in preparing your cost proposal:

- Assume 75% of the DPPHs will be utilized for the four professional categories (i.e., engineer, analyst, senior management, and technician/technical staff) and the remaining 25% will be utilized for the three administrative categories (i.e., clerk, typist/secretary, and illustrator/graphics/technical writer).

- Assume a 19 April 2004 award date.

- Assume the following schedule:

- Completion of 5 locations in GFY04 (2.5%)

- Completion of 30 locations in GFY05 (15%)

- Completion of 30 locations in GFY06 (15%)

- Completion of 40 locations in GFY07 (20%)

- Completion of 45 locations in GFY08 (22.5%)

- Completion of 50 locations in GFY09 and GFY10 (25%)

- Assume CLIN 0001 covers GFY04, GFY05, and GFY06 and seven (7) months in GFY 07; CLIN 0002 covers five (5) months in GFY07 and seven (7) months in GFY08; CLIN 0003 covers five (5) months in GFY08 and seven (7) months in GFY09; and CLIN 0004 covers five (5) months in GFY09 and seven (7) months in GFY10.

- Include NTE of $0 for the Cost Saving Incentive CLIN.

- Include NTE Travel dollars as follows (NOTE:  All travel costs will be reimbursed at cost, including appropriate indirect costs, however, travel is a non-fee-bearing item.):

- CLIN 0001 - $3,594,200

- CLIN 0002 - $1,890,560

- CLIN 0003 - $2,049,680

- CLIN 0004 - $2,208,800

- Include NTE Material dollars as follows (NOTE:  All material costs will be reimbursed at cost, including appropriate indirect costs, however, materials is a non-fee-bearing item.):

- CLIN 0001 - $75,452,300

- CLIN 0002 - $50,904,880

- CLIN 0003 - $58,746,390

- CLIN 0004 - $66,847,100

- Utilize the following CLIN breakout for the 2,838,428 DPPHs:

- CLIN 0001 – 890,730 DPPHs

- CLIN 0002 – 581,465 DPPHs

- CLIN 0003 – 649,098 DPPHs

- CLIN 0004 – 717,134 DPPHs

- Assume the CLIN 0001 DPPHs are spread evenly across each GFY within that CLIN.  Spread the total number of Professional DPPHs equally among the 24 Professional Government Labor Categories (GLCs).  Similarly, spread the total number of Administrative DPPHs equally among the 11 Administrative Professional GLCs.  Assume the same methodology for each of the remaining CLINs 0002, 003, and 0004.

L.3  General

(1)  For the purposes of this request for proposal, the terms “offeror”, “LSI”, “contractor” and “Prime contractor” are used synonymously.  These instructions provide guidance to the offeror in preparing the proposal and describe the approach for development and presentation of the proposed data in response to this solicitation.

(2)  The proposal must comply fully with these instructions.  Failure to do so may cause the proposal to be eliminated from consideration for award.  The proposal shall include all of the information requested in these instructions.  Alternate proposals are not allowed and will not be considered or evaluated by the Government.

(3)  The offeror shall provide two one‑hour pre‑recorded videos on DVD.  One of these shall be a one‑hour management proposal presentation and the other a one‑hour response to the Sample Technical Directive (TD).  The offeror’s proposed Program Manager and other key personnel shall conduct the pre‑recorded presentations. 

(4)  Briefing charts used during the video proposal shall be prepared using font Times New Roman 24 or larger (on word charts) and not less than font Times New Roman 12 on text or graphics charts such as flow charts, matrices, and diagrams.  Written portions of the proposal shall be prepared using font Times New Roman 12 or larger and margins of not less than one inch (1”) on both sides and top and bottom of pages.

(5)  The offeror shall clearly state in their proposal how they intend to execute this contract.  Mere acknowledgment or restatement of a requirement or task is not acceptable.  Relevance to the effort listed herein is critical.

(6)  The information in the proposal shall be presented in a clear, coherent, and concise manner.  The presentation shall be limited to the information that is necessary to convey a point and should not be overly elaborate.

(7)  We require the receipt of unclassified proposals.  

(8)  Each volume of the proposal shall be separately bound in a three-ring loose-leaf binder that shall permit the volume to lie flat when open.  Staples shall not be used.  A cover sheet should be bound in each book, clearly marked as to volume number, title, copy number, solicitation identification and the offeror's name.  The same identifying data should be placed on the spine of each binder.

(9)  Page Format Restrictions and Limitations

- Pages shall be 8.5 x 11 inches, not including foldouts.  Pages shall be typed with at least 1.5-line spacing.  Except for the reproduced sections of the solicitation document, the font shall be Times New Roman with no less than a 12-point font size.  Margins on all four edges of each sheet will be at least one inch.  Proprietary statements, security markings, and page numbers can fall within the defined margin area.  Pages shall be numbered sequentially by volume.  These page format restrictions shall apply to responses to Evaluation Notices (ENs).

- Page limitations shall be treated as maximums.  Compliance with page count limits shall be verified via the hardcopy.  If exceeded, the excess pages or time will not be read or considered in the evaluation of the proposal and (for paper copies) will be returned to the offeror as soon as practicable.  Page limitations shall be placed on responses to ENs.  The specified page limits for EN responses will be identified in the letters forwarding the ENs to the offeror(s).  When both sides of a sheet display printed material, it shall be counted as 2 pages.  

(10)  Each volume shall contain a more detailed table of contents to delineate the subparagraphs within that volume.  Tab indexing shall be used to identify sections.

(11)  Legible tables, charts, graphs, diagrams, schematics and figures shall be used wherever practical to depict organizations, systems and layout, implementation schedules, design drawings, and plans.  These displays shall be uncomplicated, legible and shall not exceed 11 x 17 inches in size.  Foldout pages shall fold entirely within the volume.  Each printed side of a foldout shall count as one page.  Foldout pages shall only be used for large tables, charts, graphs, diagrams and schematics, not for pages of text.  For tables, charts, graphs and figures, the font shall be no smaller than 12 point Times New Roman.  Design drawings may be in offeror's format, provided standard commercial policies and practices are followed.  All information (except documentation numbers, classification markings, and page numbers) shall be contained within an image area of 9 x 15-1/2 inches.

(12)  Each volume shall be written to the greatest extent possible on a stand‑alone basis so that its contents may be evaluated with a minimum of cross-referencing to other volumes of the proposal.  Information required for proposal evaluation, which is not found in its designated volume, will be assumed to have been omitted from the proposal.

(13)  Each volume shall contain a glossary of all abbreviations and acronyms used, with an explanation for each.  Glossaries do not count against the page limitations for their respective volumes.

(14)  The contractor’s response shall be in the English language.

(15)  In Volumes II and III, include two cross reference tables one to the Statement of Work (SOW) and one to Section M (Evaluation Criteria).  These cross reference tables are not included in the stated page limitations.  Offerors shall propose the entire SOW.  Title pages, tables of contents, lists of figures, and lists of tables, acronyms, and bibliographies are not included in the stated page limitations for the proposal volumes.  The proposal volumes will be submitted as shown in the following table, Exhibit L – 1, Proposal Volumes.

	VOLUME/ TAB
	FACTOR
	TITLE
	PAGE LIMITATION
	# OF HARD COPIES
	# OF CDs

	I
	
	GENERAL
	5 pages for offeror‑created documentation
	5
	25

	II
	FACTOR I
	MANAGEMENT
	
	5
	25

	Tab A
	Subfactor I
	LSI Organization and Management Approach
	See limits for Tabs A1 thru A5
	
	

	Tab A1
	Element 1
	Organizational Plan and Structure
	15 pages
	
	

	Tab A2
	Element 2
	Communications 
	5 pages
	
	

	Tab A3
	Element 3
	Management Approach 
	10 pages
	
	

	Tab A4
	Element 4
	Master Subcontracting Plan or Comprehensive Subcontracting Plan and LSI Specific Subcontracting Plan
	Unlimited 
	
	

	Tab A5
	Element 5
	Program Risk
	5 pages
	
	

	Tab B
	Subfactor II


	Integrated Logistics Support, Sustainment Planning, and Innovative Business Practices.
	See limits for Tabs B1 and B2
	
	

	Tab B1
	Elements 1 and 2
	Logistics Support
	30 Pages
	
	

	Tab B2
	Element 3 and 4
	Innovative Business Practices
	15 pages
	
	

	Tab C
	
	Procurement Integrity Issues
	5 pages
	
	

	Tab D
	Management Subfactor I and II
	Management 
	1 DVD/50 Slides
	See Note 1
	See Note 1

	III
	FACTOR II
	TECHNICAL
	
	5
	25

	Tab A
	Subfactor I Elements 

1 through 7
	Technical Knowledge and Methodology
	30 pages
	
	

	Tab B
	Subfactor II
	Solutions to the Sample Technical Directive
	See Limit for TAB B1 and B2
	
	

	Tab B1


	Elements 

1 through 6
	Written Solutions to the Sample Technical Directive
	30 pages of text, plus 5 pages of drawings
	
	

	Tab B2
	(Offeror’s audio visual responses to the Sample TD)
	DVD Solution to the Sample Technical Directive
	1 DVD/50 slides
	See Note 1
	See Note 1

	IV
	FACTOR III
	RELEVANT PRESENT AND PAST PERFORMANCE
	5 pages plus

Spreadsheet
	5
	25

	V
	FACTOR IV
	COST 
	
	5
	5

	Tab A
	
	Cost Development Process
	7 pages+ FPR agreements
	
	

	Tab B
	
	Other Pertinent Pricing Information and Data
	See limits for Tabs B1, B2 and B3
	
	

	Tab B1
	
	LSI and Subcontractor Data
	Unlimited
	
	

	Tab B2
	
	Government‑furnished property, service, or material (GFP/S/M) information
	Unlimited
	
	

	Tab B3
	
	Cost‑related materials or justification
	Unlimited
	
	

	Tab C
	
	Costing of Sample TD
	10 pages
	
	

	Note 1
	
	For both Management Tab D and Technical Tab B2 provide ten (10) copies of the DVD, ten (10) hard copies of the slides and twenty five (25) CDs of slides
	
	
	


Exhibit L - 1 Proposal Volumes
(16) DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS:  All electronic data must be in Microsoft Office 2000 and Adobe Acrobat 5.0, virus free, on Compact Disk (CD).  Offerors shall submit hard copies, DVDs, and CDs of the proposal in accordance with the table Exhibit L-1, Proposal Volumes, at L.3 (15).  Each of the five (5) volumes shall be saved in a separate file on the proposal CDs.  The narrative portions shall be in Microsoft Word (MS Office 2000) for Windows and Adobe Acrobat 5.0, and any graphics shall be in Microsoft Power Point (MS Office 2000) for Windows and Adobe Acrobat 5.0.  All of the CDs shall be submitted in a non-compressed PC format.  If files contain links, the links must be intact and maintained through all revisions.  

(17) The offerors proposal package shall consist of five (5) hard copies of the total proposal, twenty-five (25) copies of the CDs with Volume I –IV, five (5) copies of CDs with the Cost Volume V, and ten (10) copies of the Management and Technical DVD s.  One copy of every thing except cost volumes should be sent to:
CDR Steven Bertolaccini

JPEO-CBD

5109 Leesburg Pike, Room 916

Falls Church

VA 22041

The remaining copies, and all cost volumes should be sent to:

	Mailing and shipping address

Michele Williams

Department Of The Army

U.S. Army Space and Missile Defense Command (USASMDC)

ATTN.  SMDC-CM-CS

P.O. Box 1500

Huntsville, Alabama 35807-3801
	  or
	Handcarry delivery

Michele Williams

Department Of The Army

U.S. Army Space and Missile Defense Command (USASMDC)

ATTN.  SMDC-CM-CS

106 Wynn Drive

Huntsville, Alabama 35805-1957


L.4  Volume Descriptions

L.4.1  Volume I – General 

The general volume will consist of the actual offer (prepared in accordance with L.2, Instructions for the Completion of Solicitation Part I - The Schedule, as set forth above) to enter into a contract to perform the desired work.  It will include a table of contents for the overall proposal, an Executive Summary of the overall proposal, Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, as well as all other RFP sections requiring fill-in completion by the offeror, Amendment(s) Acknowledgement(s), identification of technical data and computer software which the contractor intends to provide with limited rights or restricted rights, any and all exceptions to or deviations from the terms and conditions of the RFP from either the prime or the subcontractor, and an acronym listing.  The Executive Summary will provide an overview of the offeror's organization and general approach to meeting the requirements of the solicitation.  The Executive Summary should identify pertinent aspects of the proposed approach including teaming approaches, if any, subcontracting, and relevant corporate experience and expertise on similar programs, and should also highlight particular advantages or unique approaches of the proposal.  This document shall not include any cost information.  The page limitation is five (5) pages excluding table of contents, representations and certifications, other fill‑in portions of the RFP; copies of contractor acknowledgments of RFP amendments, and signed teaming arrangements/letter(s) of commitment.  In the absence of a signed teaming arrangement or letters of commitment, the offer and each partner and/or subcontractor must sign the Executive Summary. Selection for award is predicated upon determination of responsibility of the Contracting Officer.  Such determination will be made in accordance with FAR 9.104 and will utilize at a minimum documents submitted in this Volume I. 

L.4.2  Volume II – Management 

     (a)  The management Volume shall be separated by tabs as shown below.  The management proposal shall contain a description of the contractor's approach to complete all the requirements of the SOW.  Proposals containing only statements of compliance (e.g., "will comply") are not acceptable.  The management proposal shall contain a qualification of management performance parameters and sufficient rationale to allow an evaluation of approaches.  The management proposal shall include a description of proposed resources, facilities, equipment, and services, including Government‑furnished facilities, equipment, services, and information, to be used in accomplishing the requirements of the SOW.

     (b)  The management volume shall contain a comprehensive description of the proposed LSI management structure and the approach to ensuring successful management of this complex multi‑task program.  The offeror shall describe the organizational structure, including major subcontractors, and how that organization fits into the overall corporate structure.  The reporting and review relationship with corporate management and the commitment to maintaining core resources shall be explained.  In describing the program organization, the offeror shall include (i) responsibilities, lines of authority, and span of control, (ii) relationship among the prime contractor and subcontractors and process for assigning SOW task responsibility, (iii) flow of information among the offeror's teams and organization, and (iv) interface and communication among the contractor team, requiring activities, and external organizations.  The offeror shall also describe the process for managing and controlling team members and subcontractors to include the reporting and review requirements imposed and the process for timely incorporation of team member and subcontractor financial information into the prime's data.  The offeror shall fully describe the management control system established for effective planning and control of resources to include the process for scheduling, budgeting, and accumulating cost, identifying cost and schedule problems, and providing timely and detailed performance status reports to management and the Government.  The process for accounting and collecting costs for separate sources of funds and tasks shall be explained.

     (c)  Management Tabs – 

     (TAB A)  LSI Organization and Management Approach.  This section shall address the various elements of the organization of the team proposed to perform the LSI efforts.  The proposed offeror shall address communications within the LSI/Government team as well as the LSI subcontractors.  The offeror shall address their approach to developing an efficient, coordinated, and cost-effective approach to managing subcontracts, executing technical directives, and achieving small business subcontracting goals. The offeror shall address any risks associated with the proposed structure and put forward mitigation strategies to keep the risk within acceptable limits to ensure successful contract performance.  (FOR SPECIFIC PAGE LIMITATIONS UNDER THIS TAB, SEE BELOW) 

      (TAB A1)  Organizational Plan/Structure. This section shall address a comprehensive organization plan and structure that effectively accomplishes each element of the SOW, teaming methodologies and arrangements. The offeror shall address their approach to obtain and sustain the resources in personnel, facilities, and supplies.  The offeror shall submit a listing of proposed key personnel for the IPP effort that shall include a discussion of their general qualifications for their positions.  This list shall also include the resume of the proposed Program Manager who will be subject to negotiation prior to making a final determination for inclusion in the resultant contract.  The resume shall include the proposed PM's background experience, especially addressing experience relevant to this particular effort, cross‑referenced to the SOW section.  The PM resume must be submitted in the required format set out below.  (LIMIT 15 PAGES)
- Name

- Security clearance and date granted

- Education

- Colleges attended, major, dates of attendance, and degree attained or hours completed

- Special Training

- Experience.  In reverse chronological order, list all work positions held, the job title, the inclusive dates, the employer, and a brief description of the tasks performed.

- Related Experience.  Include any relevant information that shows why this person is the best choice for LSI PM.

- The most significant managerial accomplishment in the last five years relevant to this effort

- The most significant technical accomplishment in the last five years relevant to this effort

- The most salient skills that relate to the proposed effort

     (TAB A2)  Under this TAB, include the offerors plans to establish reliable and effective communications within the LSI/Government team, the LSI subcontractors, suppliers, vendors, the Military Services, and Federal, state, and local responders. (5 PAGES)
     (TAB A3)  Management Approach.  This approach shall cover his understanding of the SOW, each Service’s mission, management methodologies, control systems, resources, and the approach to selecting appropriate FoS components and subsystems to meet the requirements of each specific TD. (LIMIT 10 PAGES)

     (TAB A4)  Master Subcontracting Plan or Comprehensive Subcontracting Plan and LSI Specific Subcontracting Plan. This section shall include an efficient, realistic, and cost effective approach to execute subcontracts including the proposed approach for qualifying potential subcontractors, pricing evaluation, selection criteria, and subcontracting administration. Include the offeror’s LSI‑specific small business goals.  With regard to FAR 52.219-9(d)(1) and (2), the subcontracting goals should be no less than 23% of the total contract value  (5% for small disadvantaged business (including historically black colleges or universities/minority institutions, 5% for women‑owned small businesses, 3% for veteran‑owned small businesses, including Service‑disabled veteran small businesses, and 3% for HUB Zone businesses.  Minimum content requirements for the plan are addressed in FAR 52.219-9.  (UNLIMITED)
     (TAB A5)  Program Risk.  The offeror shall apply their risk management plan to identify potential program risks, assess their significance and provide efficient mitigation approaches including the LSI, subcontractors, suppliers, and vendors. (LIMIT 5 PAGES)

     (TAB B)  ILS, Sustainment Planning, and Innovative Business Practices.  This section shall address the various elements of the offeror’s ILS, sustainment, and innovative business approaches.  The offeror shall address any risks in the ILS, sustainment, and business practices associated with any innovations and put forward mitigation strategies to keep the risk within acceptable limits to ensure successful contract performance.  (FOR SPECIFIC PAGE LIMITATIONS UNDER THIS TAB, SEE BELOW) 

     (TAB B1)  Integrated Logistics Support (ILS) and Sustainment Planning.  The offerors shall describe their ILS and sustainment approaches for FoS hardware from a management and execution viewpoint that meets the IPP support concepts as outlined in Section C.2.9 of the RFP.  (LIMIT 30 PAGES)  

     (TAB B2)  General Business Innovations. The offeror shall describe improvements in the business processes and practices of the offeror that have contributed to the enhanced efficiency of past contract performance.  Supporting information must include verifiable evidence of cost reductions and how they were achieved.  Accomplishments described must be clearly related to and demonstrate cost control and operational efficiency.  The purpose of this TAB is to demonstrate efficiencies of the past.  The information here should not result in alternate cost proposals. Alternate proposals will not be evaluated.  (LIMIT 15 PAGES) 

     (TAB C)  Procurement Integrity Issues.  The offeror shall address, as applicable, employment issues relative to procurement integrity and laws governing former Government employees (see DoD Directive 5500.7, Joint Ethics Regulation).  Selection for award is predicated upon determination of responsibility to be made by the Contracting Officer.  Such determination will be made in accordance with FAR 9.104 and will utilize, at a minimum, documents submitted under this TAB.  (LIMIT 5 PAGES)

     (TAB D)  Management.  The management DVD plus hard copies of the slides used in the DVD.  Format for the DVD is left to the discretion of each offeror (Management Subfactors I and II).  The following topics should be included in the one-hour management presentation.  However, these topics are not in any order of importance, nor in a recommended presentation order.  (LIMIT 50 SLIDES).  
    Team concept and philosophy relative to the LSI Program
- Approach to LSI Program Management

- Approach to interaction with JPMG PMO

     Management
- Introduction of team and proposed role of each member in execution of this effort

- Management organization and framework

- Lines of authority and communication

- Links to performance management criteria

- ISO certifications

     Qualifications of the management team

-Capability and experience in executing tasks in multiple and diverse organizations

-Capability and experience of SOW requirements related to LSI SOW requirements

-Risk Management Approach for the IPP and as it relates to the proposed LSI structure

-Cost Control Concepts

     Resources

- Contractor Occupied Facilities

-Types

-Locations

-Security clearance at each location

-Approximate percentage of LSI personnel at each location

-Technologies and tools available

-Personnel

-Hiring philosophy

-Employee retention philosophy

-Prevention of complacency and stagnation

-Allocation

-Security clearances

     Integrated Logistic Support (ILS), sustainment planning, and innovative business practices that demonstrates your ability to execute this effort

-Description of logistic support elements

-FoS hardware turnaround time, repair time, hardware availability

-FoS sustainment support and follow on support policy

-Sustainment support

-Reduction initiatives

     The management DVD shall be pre‑recorded by the offeror team.  This DVD shall not be overly elaborate and shall consist only of the presenter(s) and the briefing charts submitted as part of the proposal.  The offeror’s proposed Program Manager and staff determined by the offeror to be key personnel must conduct the presentation.  Color may be used in the charts as long as it does not detract from the message or become unreadable when made into black and white copies.  Special effects, such as animation, sound effects, and the like, are expressly forbidden and their use may be cause for determining the proposal non‑responsive.  The total running time of this presentation shall not exceed one hour.  The DVD shall remain the property of the U.S. Government and will be appropriately marked and safeguarded in accordance with Source Selection procedures.  (LIMIT 50 SLIDES to be provided as Tab E in Vol II, Management)

L.4.3
Volume III – Technical

     The technical volume shall be separated by tabs as shown below.  Proposals containing only statements of compliance (e.g., "will comply") are not acceptable.  The technical proposal shall contain a qualification of technical performance parameters, technical risk, and sufficient rationale to allow an evaluation of approaches.  The technical proposal shall include a description of proposed resources, facilities, equipment, and services, including Government‑furnished facilities, equipment, services, and information, to be used in accomplishing the requirements of the SOW.

     (Tab A)  Technical Knowledge and Methodology.  The technical proposal shall contain a description of the contractor's technical approach to completing all the requirements of the SOW.  This section shall also demonstrate the necessary technical expertise to support the initiation and completion of the program, to include management, planning, and responsibility for total systems performance, the ability to integrate COTS and GOTS into a FoS solution, and the capability to integrate the system architecture into an installation C4I network for installation protection and emergency responder control.  The technical proposal shall demonstrate a concise understanding of engineering modeling and simulation using analytical data tools to derive solution sets.  The technical proposal shall also demonstrate an understanding of decision support tools.  The proposal shall include the following: (LIMIT 30 PAGES)

- The technical expertise required to support the initiation and completion of the program, to include responsibility for FoS performance, the ability to integrate COTS and GOTS CBRN defense equipment for detection, identification, warning, reporting, decision support, individual protection, collective protection, decontamination, medical management, and surveillance components

- The ability to support CBRN CONOPS development and to integrate a system architecture into an installation C4I network for installation protection and emergency responder control which results in a C4I capability that supports communications with appropriate military headquarters, local, and off‑post response organizations and an open software architecture design to accommodate future communications upgrades

- An appropriate CBRN decision support tool that supports rapid and effective decision making

- The ability to perform site survey, final system design, hardware and software integration, and system fielding, and integration with existing installation capabilities

- A concise understanding of engineering modeling and simulation and how they apply to the derivation of the FoS

- The capability to support development of appropriate installation CBRN training materials, the ability to develop and conduct effective new equipment training, and the ability to conduct tabletop and installation‑wide exercises

- The ability to incorporate CBRN technological advancements into the FoS

     (Tab B)  Solutions to the Sample Technical Directive (TD).  

     (TAB B1)  Written Solutions to the Sample Technical Directive.  The offeror will receive one (1) Conceptual Design of a Representative Installation, Attachment 1.  The offeror shall provide sufficient written details to clearly demonstrate their approach to understanding the implementation of a complete solution based upon this conceptual design.  The offerors shall present their technical methodology and rationale along with their final design solutions.  The final design solutions shall include the following elements:  (LIMIT 30 PAGES OF TEXT, 5 PAGES DRAWINGS)

- Overall Family of Systems (FoS) effectiveness.  Describe how the overall FoS preserves critical mission under all CBRN attacks and scenarios on military installations.  Using the four attack scenarios as representative examples, show how detection, identification, warning, protection, and other response functions are combined to protect personnel, maintain critical mission capability, and quickly resume critical mission functions.  Discuss alarm assessment, alarm communication and display, decision support, and concepts of operations.  Use science‑based principles to support the FoS final design.  Use performance measures including probability of detection, time for active or passive protection, and response times.

- Operational Analysis.  Demonstrate FoS level of improvement by conducting an Operational Analysis Sequence and Timing Description (OV-6c) per DoD C4ISR latest Architecture Framework.  Compare your proposed FoS solution with the technical directive partial solution to demonstrate FoS improvements.

- Operation integration of FoS.  Demonstrate the operational integration of the proposed FoS architecture with existing installation capabilities.

- Technical Selection of FoS Components.  Specify rationale for the choice of COTS, GOTS, GFE, hardware, software, other analytical tools, and other response assets.  Avoid use of proprietary installed components.

- FoS System Design.  Describe the detailed C4I design in accordance the DoD latest C4ISR architecture framework.  Demonstrate FoS C4I architecture integration to the existing installation architecture to support mission continuity.  

- Mission Recovery and Restoration.  Describe recovery operations to maintain mission‑critical operations and restore essential mission installation functions.

     (Tab B2)  DVD Solution to the Sample Technical Directive. The one-hour DVD, plus a hard copy of the slides used in the DVD.  The offeror’s visual responses to the sample TD will be a one-hour pre‑recorded presentation submitted on DVD.  The offeror’s proposed Program Manager and other staff determined by the offeror to be key personnel must conduct the presentation.  Color may be used in the charts as long as it does not detract from the message or become unreadable when made into black and white copies.  Special effects, such as animation, sound, and the like, are expressly forbidden and their use may be cause for determining the proposal non‑responsive.  The total running time of this presentation shall not exceed one hour.  The DVD shall remain the property of the U.S. Government and will be appropriately marked and safeguarded in accordance with Source Selection procedures. (LIMIT 50 SLIDES TO BE PROVIDED AS TAB B2 IN VOL III, TECHNICAL)

L.4.4  Volume IV – Relevant Present and Past Performance

     Relevant Present and Past Performance Information.  The offeror shall provide a list of seven (7) contracts or major subcontracts similar in their management or technical nature and complexity to this acquisition.  These contracts must be either ongoing or completed within the past two years.  If proposing as a formal team or Joint Venture (g), these contracts may be spread among the key team members or JV partners. The LSI must have performed as the lead contractor on at least two (2) of the seven (7) provided reference contracts.  Contracts listed shall only include those entered into with the Federal Government.  This information shall be submitted on an Excel spreadsheet (see Attachment 3) with the Contract Number; Task Order Number, if applicable; Government Points of Contact (technical, management, and contractual), including name, address, telephone number, and email address; the title of the effort; the contract value; and the period of performance.  In addition, the offeror must provide a brief narrative addressing relevant experience for each contract.  The Past Performance Evaluation Form is located at Attachment 2.  The offeror shall complete Section 1 of the Form for each contractual vehicle addressed in the Excel spreadsheet discussed above.  After the offeror has completed Section 1, the entire Past Performance Evaluation Form letter shall be mailed or emailed to the Government Contracting Officer listed in the Excel spreadsheet submitted as part of the proposal.  In accordance with Section M of this solicitation, each offeror will be evaluated on their performance under existing and prior contracts for similar services.  Performance information will be used for both responsibility determinations and as an evaluation subfactor to assure best value to the Government.  See Section M.2.3 Factor III for discussion of the evaluation of past performance information.  (LIMIT 5 PAGES + SPREADSHEET) 

L.4.5  Volume V – Cost Proposal

     Failure to comply with RFP requirements for pricing information may result in an adverse assessment of your proposal and reduce or eliminate your chance of being selected for award.  When an offeror fails to furnish cost information required by the RFP, the Government may use comparable cost information from other sources for purposes of completing its evaluation.  In these circumstances, the offeror bears full responsibility for any adverse evaluation impact that may result from their failure to furnish the information required by the RFP.  

     (a)  In the front of the Cost Proposal, provide the following subcontractor information:

- A list of subcontractors and their addresses

- The anticipated percentage of total LSI effort allocated to each subcontractor

- The anticipated start date, if other than 19 Apr 2004
     (b)  Cost Development Process – (TAB A)  The offeror shall provide a brief description of how the cost proposal was developed and prepared.  This portion of the cost proposal shall include a thorough description of the basis of the proposal, including the prime contractor indirect rates used to develop the estimated cost; the percentage of fee; how the subcontractors are paid fee (i.e., whether it is part of a shared fee pool or if the prime is adding fee onto the subcontractor’s already‑fee‑bearing costs); and any other details which provide insight into the proposal methodology.  If any of these elements or factors differs between labor categories or fiscal years, provide details and a thorough explanation.  This TAB shall include a copy of each the current Forward Pricing Rates (FPR) in place with DCAA or DCMA and past FPRs for the previous two years and a chart of current indirect rates and the rates over the past two years.  (LIMIT 7 PAGES PLUS FPR AGREEMENTS)

     (c)  The Cost Proposal volume may assume that the reader is familiar with the other volumes of the proposal.  The offeror shall ensure the information presented in this volume is adequate for evaluation and is consistent with the information contained in the other proposal volumes.  Adequate information means that level of information at which tasks and resources to accomplish the task can be logically identified and evaluated by an engineering or management specialist.

     (d)  The Cost Proposal shall be completely detailed and itemized, in accordance with L.2 so as to permit adequate and appropriate analysis thereof and to provide traceability to the other proposal volumes, as necessary.  The proposal shall be in full consonance with the offeror's system of bookkeeping and cost management.

     (e)  The Cost Proposal shall not contain any classified information.

     (f)  (TAB B)  Other Pertinent Pricing Information or Data.  All other pertinent pricing information or data shall be included under this tab.

     (TAB B1)  Under this tab, include the following data for the LSI and subcontractors, as applicable:
- The Pre‑Award Disclosure Statement - Cost Accounting Practices and Certifications was executed on _______________.  The cognizant Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) auditor determined the Disclosure Statement was current, accurate, and complete on ___________.  The cognizant ACO has determined the Disclosure Statement accurately describes the contractor's accounting system on ___________.

- The offeror provided the ACO with an Estimating System Disclosure Statement on ________.  The ACO determined the offeror's Estimating System was adequate on _______________.

- The offeror has an approved purchasing system as determined by the ACO on ____________.  The offeror has a material requirements planning system that was approved by the ACO on ______________.  (UNLIMITED)

     (TAB B2)  If the contractor proposes to use any currently available Government‑furnished property from other federal Government contracts in the conduct of this contract, they shall identify all items requested to be provided as Government‑furnished property, service, or material (GFP/S/M).  Written verification of availability from the Government Contracting Officer responsible for the proposed GFP/S/M shall be included in this section of the proposal, and adequacy of the property shall be determined by the offeror.  (UNLIMITED)  

     (TAB B3)  Under this tab, the offeror may include any pricing or cost‑related data that further explains or justifies the Cost Proposal.  This tab shall not include information or data provided elsewhere in this proposal.  (UNLIMITED)

     (Tab C)  Pricing Structure to the Sample TD.  Submit pricing data to demonstrate an understanding of the nature and costing requirements of the solution to the sample TD.  The offeror should demonstrate an understanding of what is needed to complete the TD effectively in the labor mix and pricing of the requirement, and demonstrate cost realism in the logical and appropriate use of labor categories to meet the requirements of the TD.  The proposed labor mix, materials, and travel should be addressed in sufficient detail to allow the evaluator to thoroughly understand the offeror’s approach, as well as to allow a determination of cost realism as it relates to the performance of the TD.  (LIMIT 10 PAGES)

The following have been deleted: 

	52.215-20 
	Requirements for Cost or Pricing Data or Information Other Than Cost or Pricing Data 
	OCT 1997 
	 

	52.215-20 Alt IV 
	Requirements for Cost or Pricing Data or Information Other Than Cost or Pricing Data (Oct 1997) -  Alternate IV 
	OCT 1997 
	 


(End of Summary of Changes) 
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		Quantity of Bases - GFY						2.5		5										30										30		65										40										45										50		200
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		Gov. Fiscal Year		2004		2004		2004		GFY04		2005		2005		2005		2005		GY05		2006		2006		2006		2006		GY06		Total		2007		2007		2007		2007		Total		2008		2008		2008		2008		Total		2009		2009		2009		2009		Total		Total

		Quarter		QTR2		QTR3		QTR4		Subtotal		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		QTR4		Subtotal		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		QTR4		Subtotal		CLIN 0001		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		QTR4		CLIN 0002		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		QTR4		CLIN 0003		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		QTR4		CLIN 0004		All CLINs

		Hours		N/A		89,073		89,073		178,146		89,073		89,073		89,073		89,073		356,292		89,073		89,073		89,073		89,073		356,292		890,730		145,366		145,366		145,366		145,366		581,465		162,275		162,275		162,275		162,275		649,098		179,284		179,284		179,284		179,284		717,134		2,838,427

		Material Dollars		N/A		$1,741,207		$4,062,816		$5,804,023										$34,824,138										$34,824,138		$75,452,300		$12,726,220		$12,726,220		$12,726,220		$12,726,220		$50,904,880		$14,686,598		$14,686,598		$14,686,598		$14,686,598		$58,746,390		$16,711,775		$16,711,775		$16,711,775		$16,711,775		$66,847,100		251,950,670

		Travel Dollars		N/A		$82,943		$193,534		$276,477										$1,658,862										$1,658,862		$3,594,200		$472,640		$472,640		$472,640		$472,640		$1,890,560		$512,420		$512,420		$512,420		$512,420		$2,049,680		$552,200		$552,200		$552,200		$552,200		$2,208,800		9,743,240
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		Calendar Year		2004		2004		2004		2004		CY04		2005		2005		2005		2005		CY05		2006		2006		2006		CY06		Total		2006		2007		2007		2007		Total		2007		2008		2008		2008		Total		2008		2009		2009		2009		Total		Total

		Quarter		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		QTR4		Subtotal		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		QTR4		Subtotal		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		Subtotal		CLIN 0001		QTR4		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		CLIN 0002		QTR4		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		CLIN 0003		QTR4		QTR1		QTR2		QTR3		CLIN 0004		All CLINs

		Hours				123,713		123,713		123,713		371,138		89,073		89,073		89,073		89,073		356,292		89,073		89,073		89,073		267,219		994,649

		Material Dollars																																																																						51000		150000

		Travel Dollars																																																																						$15		$15

																																																																								765000		2250000

										465		1860												Base Qty.		EP																																								325000000		2838427		114.5000382254

				Bases				Hours		EP														Assump.		(Headcount)																																								324235000		2838427		114.2305227508

				GFY				Per Base		Per Base												GFY04		5		114																																												1.0023593998

		2004 Q3		2.5		89,073		35629		76.6												GFY05		20		176

		2004 Q4		2.5		89,073		35629		76.6												GFY06		35		280																																								325000000		2838427		114.5000382254

		2005 Q1		7.5		89,073		11876		25.5												GFY07		45		349																																								322750000		2838427		113.7073456531

		2005 Q2		7.5		89,073		11876		25.5												GFY08		45		349																																												1.00697134

		2005 Q3		7.5		89,073		11876		25.5												GFY09		50		384

		2005 Q4		7.5		89,073		11876		25.5

		2006 Q1		7.5		89,073		11876		25.5

		2006 Q2		7.5		89,073		11876		25.5

		2006 Q3		7.5		89,073		11876		25.5

		2006 Q4		7.5		89,073		11876		25.5

		2007 Q1		10		145,366		14537		31.3

		2007 Q2		10		145,366		14537		31.3

		2007 Q3		10		145,366		14537		31.3

		2007 Q4		10		145,366		14537		31.3

		2008 Q1		11.25		162,275		14424		31.0

		2008 Q2		11.25		162,275		14424		31.0

		2008 Q3		11.25		162,275		14424		31.0

		2008 Q4		11.25		162,275		14424		31.0

		2009 Q1		12.5		179,284		14343		30.8

		2009 Q2		12.5		179,284		14343		30.8

		2009 Q3		12.5		179,284		14343		30.8

		2009 Q4		12.5		179,284		14343		30.8

		Total		200		2,838,427		14192

		Spread Evenly between GY04/05/06		Bases		Hours		Hrs/Base		EP

		GFY 2004		5		296910		59382		127.7

		GFY 2005		30		296910		9897		21.3

		GFY 2006		30		296910		9897		21.3

		GFY 2007		40		581465		14537		31.3

		GFY 2008		45		649098		14424		31.0

		GFY 2009		50		717134		14343		30.8

		Total		200		2838427

		Spread Evenly between 10 Qtrs.		Bases		Hours		Hrs/Base		EP

		(Possible interpretation)      GFY 2004		5		178146		35629		76.6

		GFY 2005		30		356292		11876		25.5

		GFY 2006		30		356292		11876		25.5

		GFY 2007		40		581465		14537		31.3

		GFY 2008		45		649098		14424		31.0

		GFY 2009		50		717134		14343		30.8

		Total		200		2838427

				Bases		Hours		Hrs/Base		EP

		CLIN 0001		65		890730		13704		29.5

		CLIN 0002		40		581465		14537		31.3

		CLIN 0003		45		649098		14424		31.0

		CLIN 0004		50		717134		14343		30.8

		Total		200		2838427
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% Distri.

						Team		Boeing		DGI		BAH		KBR		Tauri		LMI

				Camp Snuffy		10,803		2,387		1,823		2,951		2,928		0		714

				Use Camp Snuffy % distribution for weighted avg.		100.0%		22.1%		16.9%		27.3%		27.1%		0.0%		6.6%

				Sample TD Hours (lower 1/3 of sites)		10,803

				Complexity Ftr. (top 1/3) = 1.3		15,124

				Complexity Ftr. (middle 1/3) = 1.2		11,883

				Weighted Avg./Most Likely (Camp Snuffy % Distri.)		12,604		2,785		2,127		3,443		3,416		0		833

				Sites				200		200		200		200		200		200

				Total Site Hours - 200 sites		2,520,700		556,967		425,367		688,567		683,200		0		166,600

				Program Mgmt. EP		38		30		2.75		3		1		1.25

				Total Hours through FY 09		385,795		304,575		27,919		30,458		10,153		12,691		0

				One Yr. Sus. @ 300 hrs/base		60,000		60,000		0		0		0		0		0

				Continuous Optimization EP		10.0		4.0		2.0		1.0		0.5		0.5		1.0

				Total Continuous Optimization Hours		91,373		40,610		20,305		10,153		5,076		5,076		10,153

				Grand Total Hours through FY 09 (Most Likely)		3,057,868		962,152		473,591		729,177		698,429		17,767		176,753

				Weighted Percent Distribution		100.0%		31.5%		15.5%		23.8%		22.8%		0.6%		5.8%

				Government Hours based on weighted distribution		2,838,427		893,105		439,605		676,849		648,308		16,492		164,068

				Pricing Actions Required:

		(1)		Develop strategy and hours for most likely weighted average for all 200 sites.  Who?  When?

		(2)		Develop Program Management EP/Hours by teammate. Determine if constant LOE or varies over time.  Who?  When?

		(3)		Develop weighted average hours for one year sustainment applicable to all 200 bases.  Who?  When?

		(4)		Develop Continuous Optimization EP/Hours by teammate. LOE or spread over CYs?  Who?  When?

		(5)		Need to address the issue of any lower tier subs.  Preferred decision is to keep them as boeing hours, then make/buys

				after execution if we believe it is within our affordability.  Alternate is to identify sub hours and assign rate. Can we

				make this call right now?

		(6)		Need most likely, upside, downside for Cost Savings Incentive CLIN for internal presentations. Need plan, schedule.

		(7)		Identify other opportunities for improving returns, e.g. FFP with higher returns (but more risk), finding labor solutions vs.

				material solutions thus improving ROS by changing labor/mat'l mix. Need plan, schedule.

		(8)		Complete information required to develop final rates.

		(9)		Develop site quantities by CY for Most Likely Position
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				Section L direction:  Assume 19 April 2004 award date

						Proposal Period

				CLIN		of Performance		DPPHs		Material		Travel

				CLIN 0001		4/19/04 - 4/18/07		890,730		$75,452,300		$3,594,200

				CLIN 0002		4/19/07 - 4/18/08		581,465		$50,904,880		$1,890,560

				CLIN 0003		4/19/08 - 4/18/09		649,098		$58,746,390		$2,049,680

				CLIN 0004		4/19/09 - 4/18/10		717,134		$66,847,100		$2,208,800

				Totals				2,838,427		$251,950,670		$9,743,240
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				2004		2005		2006		2007		2008		2009		Totals

		Teammate		$6,452,107		$34,757,800		$46,277,426		$56,975,114		$63,584,300		$52,358,672		$260,405,419

		Boeing		$5,348,024		$15,892,406		$20,617,590		$24,540,934		$27,270,045		$24,596,629		$118,265,628

		Total Labor Cost		$11,800,131		$50,650,206		$66,895,016		$81,516,048		$90,854,345		$76,955,301		$378,671,047

		Material		$4,409,137		$32,123,710		$45,351,121		$56,688,901		$62,987,668		$50,390,133		$251,950,670

		Travel		$170,507		$1,242,263		$1,753,783		$2,192,229		$2,435,810		$1,948,648		$9,743,240

		Total Cost		$16,379,775		$84,016,179		$113,999,920		$140,397,178		$156,277,823		$129,294,082		$640,364,957

		Fee		$1,180,013		$5,065,021		$6,689,502		$8,151,605		$9,085,435		$7,695,530		$37,867,105

		Price		$17,559,788		$89,081,200		$120,689,422		$148,548,783		$165,363,258		$136,989,612		$678,232,062

		Boeing Hours														1,241,183		965,065

		Teammate														2,076,867		1,873,362

		Total Hours														3,318,050		2,838,427

				2004		2005		2006		2007		2008		2009		Totals

		Teammate		$6,452,107		$34,757,800		$46,277,426		$56,975,114		$63,584,300		$52,358,672		$260,405,419

		Boeing		$5,348,024		$15,892,406		$20,617,590		$24,540,934		$27,270,045		$24,596,629		$118,265,628

		Total Labor Cost		$11,800,131		$50,650,206		$66,895,016		$81,516,048		$90,854,345		$76,955,301		$378,671,047

		Material		$4,409,137		$32,123,710		$45,351,121		$56,688,901		$62,987,668		$50,390,133		$251,950,670

		Travel		$170,507		$1,242,263		$1,753,783		$2,192,229		$2,435,810		$1,948,648		$9,743,240

		Total Cost		$16,379,775		$84,016,179		$113,999,920		$140,397,178		$156,277,823		$129,294,082		$640,364,957

		Fee		$1,180,013		$5,065,021		$6,689,502		$8,151,605		$9,085,435		$7,695,530		$37,867,105

		Price		$17,559,788		$89,081,200		$120,689,422		$148,548,783		$165,363,258		$136,989,612		$678,232,062

		Mat'l/Sub Cost		$11,031,751		$68,123,773		$93,382,330		$115,856,244		$129,007,778		$104,697,453		$522,099,329

				$220,635		$1,362,475		$1,867,647		$2,317,125		$2,580,156		$2,093,949		$10,441,987		0.02

																$31,029,575		25

																$110,982,496

																$187,336,182

																0.02

														G&A on Subs		$3,746,724

														G&A on Mat/Trv		$5,233,878

														Subtotal		$8,980,602

														Sec. Savings		$24,126,630

														Variance		$15,146,028		620

																$5.34		2%






